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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-4242 1.800-S52-3345 Ext. 4242

Fax:603-271-4712 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 14, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Ne\A/ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability to exercise a renewal option and to amend an existing contract with Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc., Vendor #177198 B006, 40 Pine Street, P.O. Box 5040, Manchester, New Hampshire
03108, for the provision of statewide Child Care Resource and Referral Services, by increasing the
price limitation by $2,200,000 from $3,960,000 to an amount not to exceed $6,160,000 and by
extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2021, effective upon the date
of Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on May 27, 2015
(Item #21) and subsequently amended on May 4, 2016 (Item #5A). August 3, 2016 (Item 5B) and
February 1, 2017 (Item #11).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and
2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with
authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY ASSURE

Fiscal

year

Class Title Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

Decrease

Modified

Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Pqr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 -0- $990,000

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Pgr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 -0- $990,000

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Pqr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 -0- $990,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Pqr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 -0- $990,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Pqr Svcs 42117709 -0- $990,000 $990,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Pqr Svcs 42117709 -0- $990,000 $990,000

Sub-Total $3,960,000 $1,980,000 $5,940,000
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05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

Fiscal Class Title Activity Current Increase/ Modified

year Code Budget Decrease Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Pgr Svcs 42117708 -0- $110,000 $110,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Pgr Svcs 42117708 -0- $110,000 $110,000

, Sub-total -0- $220,000 $220,000

Total $3,960,000 $2,200,000 $6,160,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to expand upon the existing contract that provides a statewide
Child Care Resource and Referral Services program that assists families in securing high quality child
care for their children; refer families to community supports, as needed; and assist child care programs
to improve quality, by providing a centralized network of services for families in need of child care and
community services, and for child care service providers. Many of the components of this contract are
essential or specifically required to support and/or meet the reauthorization of the Child Care and
Development Fund Block Grant from the federal government

Child Care Aware of New Hampshire, a statewide Child Care Resource and Referral Program
of Southern New Hampshire Services, provides a variety of information and resources to families,
which include an online provider search, links to a variety of family and community resources, as well
as information regarding financial assistance. This service is essential for assisting families in
maintaining employment and training by providing information and access to child care throughout the
state. Child care providers are linked to professional resources, technical assistance and training which
helps to improve program quality, along with supporting the child care providers in recruiting, retaining
and training their own workforce in a market with significant staff shortages.

The Division of Economic and Housing Stability administers the Child Care and Development
Fund available through the Federal Office of Child Care and Development Fund. These funds support
eligible families by providing child care financial assistance and by supporting a variety of activities that
assist them in securing high quality child care. These federal funds also support continuous quality
improvement of early childhood child care programs through a variety of trainings which include Child
Care Basics, health and safety trainings, leadership development and other topics recommended by
the Department, or as requested by child care providers. Targeted technical assistance in the areas of
Emergency Preparedness, Credentialing, and NH Early Learning Standards is also provided, which
result in positive outcomes for children.

The original contract was competitively bid. As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in
Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the Department has the option to extend contract services for up to three
(3) periods of two (2) years each, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The Department is
exercising two (2) years of renewal options, which will be the final years for this contract. Future
services will be obtained through a new procurement prior to the end of this renewal period.

The Contractor successfully fulfilled and achieved the performance measures in the original
contract and amendments.

In SFY 2018, approximately 2,700 families accessed Child Care Resource and Referral
services, 3,000 child care providers received training, and 850 child care providers received technical
assistance.
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The ability to consistently collect, utilize and report accurate data is necessary to meet the
requirements of the Federal Office of Child Care and the reauthorized Child Care and Development
Block Grant. This is currently accomplished through this contract by use of the Child Care Aware® of
America National Data Suite.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, Child Care Resource and
Referral services may not be available to families and child care programs, which could result in lack of
alignment in child care practices and/or services, including failure to increase access to high quality
child care for families. In addition to not providing these services, it would also result in the
Department being out of compliance with the Child Care and Development Fund Federal Plan and the
additional requirements of the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act, signed into law on
November 19, 2014.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 93.575, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children and Families, Child Care and Development Block Grant, and Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) 1901NHCCDF. 2001NHCCDF, 2101NHCCDF.

Area Services: Statewide

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

jspectfully submitted,

rey .^Meyers
mmissioner

<.

The Deixirtnient of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services

This 4th Amendment to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #4") dated this, 2nd day of May, 2019 is by and between the State of
New Hampshire; Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State"
or "Department") and Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at, 40 Pine Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire, 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on May 27, 2015 (item #21), amended on May 4, 2016 (item #5A), August 3, 2016 (item
#5B), and amended on February 1, 2017 (item #11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, and
Exhibit C-1 Paragraph 3, the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council; and;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation
and modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services, and; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Item 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2021

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Item 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$6,160,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631

5. Delete Exhibit A, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #4.

6. Add Exhibit A-1, Amendment #4, Performance Measures and Goals.
4  s

7. Add Exhibit B-4, Amendment #4, Budget Worksheet SFY 2020.

8. Add Exhibit B-5, Amendment #4, Budget Worksheet SFY 2021.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Amendment #4
RFP-2016-DCYF-01-A04 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

Date I Name
Title> ^  <Si/i (U rt / ^

Date

Jputhern New Han;ipshire Services, Inc.

I

Donnalee Lmeau

Executive Director

Acknowledgement:

State of County of f ̂  , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person iN^ntified directl/above, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed
this document In the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

DEBRA D. STOHRER
Notary Public - New HampsMrs

My Commission Expires November 18,2020

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. Amendment #4
RFP-20ie-DCYF^)1-A04 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Tit

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
RFP-2016-DCYF-01-A04

Amendment #4

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure

meaningful access to their programs and/or sen/ices within ten (10) days of the

contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor shall pursue any and ail appropriate public sources of funds that are

applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or

rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to

document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of

funds.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any

payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an

appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and

funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall promote and market high quality, culturally competent. Child

Care Resource & Referral (CCR&R) services statewide, to families, providers,

businesses and community members, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.1.1. Annually update marketing materials using Child Care Aware® of

America's (formerly NACCRRA) best practices. Marketing materials will

include, but not be limited to:

2.1.1.1. Brochures;

2.1.1.2. Flyers;

2.1.1.3. Display posters;

2.1.1.4. Pens;

2.1.1.5. Magnets;

2.1.1.6. Other marketing tools;

WSouthern New Hampshire Services. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials

RFP-2016-DCYF-01-A04 Page1of21 Date Sjbjl^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.1.1.7. Materials will be updated in both English and Spanish,

occurring in May of each year, and at minimum, will contain:

2.1.1.7.1. Program name:

2.1.1.7.2. Toll free phone number; and

2.1.1.7.3. Website.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall maintain a comprehensive website that meets the

requirements of the U. S. Department of Health & Human Services,

Administration for Children & Families (ACF), Office of Child Care State

and Territory Child Care Consumer Education Websites: Self-Assessment

Checklist. This website serves as the NH Consumer Education Website

for Child Care and shall be clearly identified as such and shall be approved

by the Department.

2.1.2.1. This site will have tabs or "buttons" specifically for families,

providers and the community. Under each tab, a list of

informative and related resources and links will be provided.

Tabs specific to Families and Providers will be created as

outlined below:

2.1.2.1.1. Families: This tab will be on the main page of the

website and will give Families the option of

selecting a Child Care Search Online, Child Care

Licensing Information, Quality Matters (to include

what quality Is, questions to consider when

selecting a program, quality indicators and

designations of quality). Financial Assistance (how

to apply for child care scholarship, including a link

to NH Easy, an online application link for

assistance). Complaint Policies, Family Resources,

and

2.1.2.1.2. Providers: This tab will be on the main page of the

website and will give Providers the option of

searching for training through the NH Professional

Registry, will include Provider Resources, and

social media options.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor initials

RFP-2016-DCYF-01-A04 Page 2 of 21 Date.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.1.2.2. This site will be reflective of New Hampshire and will have:

2.1.2.2.1. Photos and videos that specifically depict child care

services throughout the state:

2.1.2.2.2. There will be an "About Us" tab to give the site a

friendly and usable feel for a statewide audience.

Included in the tab will be sub-headings connecting

to information about the Department's Bureau of

Child Development and Head Start Collaboration

(BCDHSC), followed by information about the Child

Care Resource & Referral (CCR&R) program and

organization. In addition, links to other Department

contractors, who provide services to child care

programs, shall be included at the discretion of the

Department;

2.1.2.2.3. The NH Professional Registry, will be housed on

this site for quick access as will the Online Referral

Module for families seeking child care referrals;

2.1.2.2.4. A link to Eventbrite trainings and Facebook; and

2.1.2.2.5. A translator function will be available on this site to

translate information into any language.

2.1.3. The Contractor shall disseminate marketing materials and information, to

promote public awareness, through various means such as:

2.1.3.1. Local hospitals; including prenatal classes

2.1.3.2. Pediatrician, obstetric and general practitioner offices;

2.1.3.3. Early intervention programs;

2.1.3.4. Churches:

2.1.3.5. Local retailers;

2.1.3.6. Realtors;

2.1.3.7. Libraries;

2.1.3.8. Grocery stores;

2.1.3.9. Restaurants;

Soutfiem New Hampshire Services, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.1.3.10. DHHS district offices;

2.1.3.11. NHEP offices and partner meetings;

2.1.3.12. Health clubs;

2.1.3.13. Malls:

2.1.3.14. Community boards;

2.1.3.15. School districts and local community colleges;

2.1.3.16. Through community events;

2.1.3.17. Family resource centers;

2.1.3.18. Community action agencies, (Including Head Start);

2.1.3.19. WIC;

2.1.3.20. 211;

2.1.3.21. Fuel assistance offices; and

2.1.3.22. Child health support services and workplace success

programs.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide statewide child care resource and referral services to

families who may or may not be receiving assistance or services from the New

Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) or the Department. The Contractor will:

2.2.1. Maintain regular business hours, at a minimum, from 8:30 a.m. - 4:30

p.m., Monday through Friday in the main office (Southern/Manchester

Regional/Main Office) and In each of the four (4) regional offices

(Concord/Laconia Regional Outreach Office. Berlin/Conway/Llttleton

Regional Outreach Office. Claremont/Keene Outreach Regional Office,

Rochester/Seacoast Regional Outreach Office).

2.2.2. Offer appointments for services outside of the regular business hours, as

Identified in Paragraph 2.2.1., by request through the program's website.

2.2.3. Conduct referrals via phone, in-person, online or at NHEP orientations.

2.2.4. Maintain a strong working relationship with NHEP and DHHS staff in each

District Office.

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor initials 1/
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.2.4.1. The Contractor will participate in NHEP orientations to inform

participants with information about child care, what assistance

may be available to meet their needs and information regarding

child care licensing and quality indicators to look for when

selecting a child care program for their child(ren).

2.2.5. Make connections with McKinney-Vento Liaisons to identify children who

may not be school age, but require child care services, as well as school

age children who are in need of before/after school care. Connections

may be made through the Director of the Office of Homeless Education at
the NH Department of Education, and will minimally include information

about Child Care Resource and Referral and the services they provide.

2.3. The Contractor shall follow up with clients two (2) to three (3) weeks after an initial

referral is taken, using a developed evaluation and follow up process, using various

methods which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.3.1. Phone contact (in English & Spanish),

2.3.2. A paper survey (included in each referral packet),

2.3.3. Through "Survey Monkey" (a web-based survey link), or

2.3.4. Mailing a "Family Satisfaction Survey".

2.4. The Contractor shall enter all information concerning follow-up attempts and

completed surveys into the Department's designated data system and provide a

quarterly report to the Department's Program Specialist monitoring the contract.

2.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department's contractors and other

stakeholders to maximize the cost benefit of providing statewide services to families

and child care programs. The Contractor will:

2.5.1. Provide service in multiple regions within the state in a consistent and

streamlined approach;

2.5.2. Place emphasis on proper, reliable and valid data collection and reporting;

2.5.3. Utilize "Go-to-Meeting", or other online meeting or video conferencing tool

formats, conference calling to other technological services as an
alternative means to still engage with client personally with minimizing the

expenses associated with travel and time providing direct in-person

services;

Soutriem New Hampshire Services, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.5.4. Work with the Department's Child Care Licensing Unit (CCLU) to maintain

and update an accurate and complete database of child care programs

within the Department's designated data system;

2.5.5. Collaborate with other State of NH contractors to promote each other's

services and to assist in increasing awareness of contracted services; and

2.5.6. CCR&R Outreach Specialists work with the Department's BCDHSC

Specialists on ensuring that the data in each of their respective databases

are accurate in terms of which providers are enrolled In and accepting

child care scholarships.

2.6. The Contractor shall maintain current relationships/collaborations with other

agencies and organizations to maximize child care resource sen/ices. These

agencies/organizations include, but are not limited to:

2.6.1. New Hampshire Employment Program;

2.6.2. Bureau of Child Development and Head Start Collaboration (BCDHSC);

2.6.3. Child Care Licensing Unit;

2.6.4. Early Head Start and Head Start Programs;

2.6.5. Alliance for Better Childcare (ABC);

2.6.6. Arts Alliance of New Hampshire;

2.6.7. Early Leaming New Hampshire (ELNH);

2.6.8. New Hampshire Association for the Education of Young Children

(NHAEYC);

2.6.9. New Hampshire Children's Trust;

2.6.10. State Early Learning Alliance (SELA);

2.6.11. Spark NH; Early Childhood Advisory Council

2.6.12. Watch Me Grow NH;

2.6.13. ACROSS NH

2.6.14. Early Education and Intervention Network;

2.6.15. Family Resource Centers;

2.6.16. Granite State College;

2.6.17. Dr. Michael Kalinowski or other Market Rate Survey contractor;

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Exhibit A > Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.6.18. Preschool Technical Assistance Network (PTAN); and

2.6.19. DHHS Divisions and Bureaus as applicable and/or requested by the

BCDHSC.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide web-based services for families and child care

providers by using the Department's designated data system to access and maintain
the database for the Department, including the client, provider and community data.

The National System for Child Care (NDS) is the current data system. NDS consists

of the following modules currently In use:

2.7.1. NACCRRAware (NW) - generates child care referrals for families and

reports. NW will manage client, provider and community data;

2.7.2. Online Referral Module (CRM) - is an online service that allows CCR&R to

have the ability and flexibility to configure fields for families to access

online referrals. This module includes an option to translate online referrals

into other languages, if needed; and

2.7.3. Training Tracking and Technical Assistance Management or TTAM which

consists of various components including, but not limited to:

2.7.3.1. Training Tracking (TT) will manage, track and report trainings

for child care providers.

2.7.3.2. The Training Portal, which is for Trainers/Trainees, provides

web based access for Trainer and Trainee records.

2.7.3.3. The Online Training Calendar (OTC) via TTAM, provides

CCR&R with the ability to create local, regional and statewide
training calendars and allow training participants to register

online for these training opportunities.

2.7.3.4. Technical Assistance Management (TA) is the module used to

manage, track and report on technical assistance provided to

child care programs.

2.7.3.5. Training Registry (TR) will track the demographics, education,

employment background and training history of child care

providers and cross sector professionals and will also Identity

and record their advancement in the field.

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure that data collection and reports are accurate and

consistent statewide.

2.8.1. The Contractor shall actively assist in maintaining the Department's

designated data system to house statewide data with accurate and current

information regarding child care needs and child care program information;

2.8.2. The SNHS program manager will assist in populating the database data

fields and updating them regularly and appropriately;

2.8.3. Activity conducted between CCR&R staff and child care programs will be

documented in the database; and

2.8.4. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of five (5) updates to the

Department's designated data system on an annual basis, which includes,

but is not limited to:

2.8.4.1. Conducting a full and partial update to the provider section of

the database;

2.8.4.2. An annual update and review of the community section;

2.8.4.3. An annual update and review of client records;

2.8.4.4. Deletion of duplicate records; and

2.8.4.5. Updating providers accepting Preventive and Protective Care

and changing their licensing status and/or quality designation.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure the database is updated on a regular basis and will

delete any duplicate or unnecessary data. The Department will provide the protocol

for transitioning, maintaining and deleting of client, provider and community records,

if a data system other than the current vendor Is chosen. In the event a new vendor

is chosen, Paragraphs 2.9.1. through Part 2.9.2.5.2.4 will be superseded.

2.9.1. Protocol for deletion of client, provider and community records includes the

deletion of:

2.9.1.1. Inactive clients with no action log history within the past two (2)

years;

2.9.1.2. Duplicate client records, all relevant history will be kept or

moved to the saved account;

2.9.1.3. Online Referral Module (CRM) clients with no referral history

within the last two (2) years;

kSouthern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials, ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.9.1.4. Child care programs/providers with no activity within a calendar

year;

2.9.1.5. Duplicate community records; and

2.9.1.6. Community records not actively used by CCR&R staff within a

calendar year.

2.9.2. The protocol for updating current information shall include, but not be

limited to:

2.9.2.1. Client Section:

2.9.2.1.1. Entering client Information for referrals will be done

within one (1) business day;

2.9.2.1.2. Deleting duplication of records will be done in

July/August of each year;

2.9.2.1.3. Administration and configuration of the Client

Section data fields will be done as needed with the

Department.

2.9.2.2. Provider Section:

2.9.2.2.1. Entering new providers In the database when

received within five (5) business days of receiving

the information;

2.9.2.2.2. Updating provider information in database will done

in March and November;

2.9.2.2.3. Inactive records will be deleted in

December/January of each year; and

2.9.2.2.4. Updating Preventive and Protective Care and

new/closed programs within five (5) business days

of receiving lists from the Department.

2.9.2.3. Community Section:

2.9.2.3.1. Adding Community Records will be done within five

(5) business days of receiving the information;

2.9.2.3.2. Reviewing and updating community section will be

done in December and January of each year; and

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.9.2.3.3. Deleting community records will be done In

December/January of each year.

2.9.2.4. Online Referral Module (CRM);

2.9.2.4.1. Administration and configuration based on the

Department needs will be done as needed.

2.9.2.5. Training and Technlcai Assistance Management Module

(TTAM):

2.9.2.5.1. Training and Tracking (TT) shall Include, but not be

limited to:

2.9.2.5.1.1. Entering training, trainers, host sites

(facilities), training competency data

wiil be done on a monthly basis;

2.9.2.5.1.2. Enrolling trainees and entering

information upon completion of

training within five (5) business days;

2.9.2.5.1.3. Merging duplicate registry user

accounts will be done as needed;

2.9.2.5.1.4. Training reporting wili be done on a

quarterly basis;

2.9.2.5.1.5. Final competency count will be

updated weekly or as requested; and

2.9.2.5.1.6. TT Training for CCR&R staff will be

done upon hire, as needed.

2.9.2.5.2. Technical Assistance (TA) Management:

2.9.2.5.2.1. Entering TA Initiatives wiii be done as

needed;

2.9.2.5.2.2. Entering TA project, episode wlil be

done upon completion of the project

or episode;

2.9.2.5.2.3. Assessing and Reporting on TA will

be done on a quarterly basis; and
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2.9.2.5.2.4. TA Training for CCR&R staff will be

done upon hire, as needed.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide statewide child care resource, referral, recruitment, and

educational training, coaching and targeted technical assistance services to licensed

center and family based providers, as well as license exempt child care providers.

These services include, but are not limited to:

2.10.1. Offering training In five (5) regions throughout the state:

2.10.2. Offering a variety of training formats, including, but not limited to, evening

trainings, conferences, full-day events and Institutes;

2.10.3. Expanding the use of standard host sites in each region for trainings to

ensure participant comfort, and to maximize adult leaming, as well as

minimize cost; and

2.10.4. Providing outreach within the community to market CCR&R services and

to attract individuals looking to provide child care within their home as a

family child care business as part of CCR&R recruitment effort.

2.11. The Contractor shall provide targeted coaching and/or technical assistance to

providers to fill unmet child care needs throughout the state. Including, but not limited
to:

2.11.1. Infant care;

2.11.2. Special needs care; and

2.11.3. Child care during non-traditional hours.

2.12. The Contractor shall provide Child Care Basics Trainings, or comparable

foundational level trainings. In modalities that may Include, but not be limited to,

online modules.

2.13. The Contractor shall offer other workshops on a statewide level, which must Include

health and safety training.

2.13.1. The Contractor shall provide "Caring for Our Children: Health, Safety,

Nutrition and Wellness" Conferences. Training topics will be based on

Caring for Our Children Health and Safety Standards and shall Include, but

not be limited to:

2.13.1.1. Preventing Spread of Infectious Disease;

2.13.1.2. Prevention of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS);
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2.13.1.3. Medication Administration;

2.13.1.4. Prevention of and Response to Emergencies Due to Food and

Ailergic Reactions;

2.13.1.5. Buliding and Physical Premises Safety;

2.13.1.6. Prevention of Shaken Baby Syndrome;

2.13.1.7. Emergency Preparedness;

2.13.1.8. The Handiing and Storage of Hazardous Materiais;

2.13.1.9. Transportation and Chiid Passenger Safety; and

2.13.1.10. Chiid Abuse and Negiect: including Recognition and Mandatory

Reporting.

2.13.2. A training track during this conference shall be offered in Spanish when

the conference is held in the Southern/Manchester region and/or

translation services shall be provided, based on need.

2.14. The Contractor shall market and facilitate training opportunities to ensure chiid care

program staff, statewide, will have the opportunity to help meet Child Care Licensing

and Federal Office of Child Care training requirements.

2.14.1. Specific marketing methods that will be used to market and promote

awareness of CCR&R professional development activities for child care

programs and providers shall include, but not be limited to:

2.14.1.1. Email distribution lists;

2.14.1.2. Website(s):

2.14.1.3. Marketing materials;

2.14.1.4. Social media;

2.14.1.5. Eventbrite;

2.14.1.6. New Hampshire Professional Registry;

2.14.1.7. Spark NH PORTAL (Professional Opportunities, Resources,

Trainings and Links);

2.14.1.8. Directors and Leadership Collaborations;

2.14.1.9. Materials for Dual Language Learners;
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2.14.1.10. Child Care Resource and Referral Training and Marketing

Specialist;

2.14.1.11. Training Modalities including, but not limited to:

2.14.1.11.1.Instructor-led training:

2.14.1.11.2.E-learning;

2.14.1.11.3.Webinar capability;

2.14.1.11.4.Links and Resources;

2.14.1.11.5.Tralning collaborations and partnerships; and

2.14.1.11.6.Host sites.

2.14.2. Initial marketing shall be done in September of each year when the annual

training calendar is completed and disseminated.

2.14.2.1. This calendar shall be mailed to all licensed programs and

license exempt programs in the NDS database;

2.14.2.2. Dissemination through Constant Contact shall also take place,

linking programs and individuals to the posting of this calendar

on the website;

2.14.2.3. Constant Contact shall be used on a monthly basis to remind
providers that the monthly training registration is open and what

trainings are available for registration;

2.14.2.3.1. This will be done through the "Monthly Minutes";

and

2.14.2.3.2. Updates will be sent on the 15*^ of each month
through the "At-A-Glance" editions and will also

consist of training reminders for up-coming
trainings and for those trainings that are still

available for registration.

2.14.2.4. Child Care Aware of NH Facebook shall be used as a means to

market training opportunities and reminders;
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2.14.2.5. The "Monthly Minutes" shall be mailed out to programs without

internet capabilities, to promote equal access of training

opportunities;

2.14.2.6. The Annual Training Calendar shall be housed for view and will

be available to download on the NH Child Care Consumer

Education Website, and shall be referenced in marketing

materials and Constant Contact disseminations; and

2.14.2.7. Trainings shall be listed for registration purposes in the NH

Professional Registry. The only exception to this will be for
trainings that are still being offered through Eventbrite for

payment purposes.

2.14.2.7.1. Eventbrite trainings shall be housed in the registry

as private and paid attendees will be enrolled by

the Professional Development Support Coordinator

and the Training and Marketing Specialist.

2.14.2.8. A list of web-based training resources specifically tied to the

Federal Office of Child Care training requirements will be

available for program and provider use. This list shall include,

but not be limited to references and links to the:

2.14.2.8.1.1. American Heart Association;

2.14.2.8.1.2. American Red Cross;

2.14.2.8.1.3. Center for Disease Control;

2.14.2.8.1.4. Federal Emergency Management

Agency (FEMA);

2.14.2.8.1.5. Healthy Child Care America;

2.14.2.8.1.6. National Resource Center for Health

and Safety in Child Care and Early

Education; and

2.14.2.8.1.7. Zero to Three.

2.15. The Contractor shall provide coaching and/or technical assistance (TA) services to

child care providers and programs with a strength-based approach throughout the
state of New Hampshire, and shall place an emphasis on targeted TA.
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2.16. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance specialists that meet the specific

qualifications described in the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional

Development System for Mentor, Program Consultant or Allied Professional at the
Master Professional level. These qualifications may be waived, on a case by case

basis, by the Department.

2.17. The Contractor shall provide training specialists who meet the specific qualifications

described In the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional Development System

for Workshop Trainer, Faculty or Allied Professional in the Master Professional level.

These qualifications may be waived, on a case by case basis, by the Department.

2.18. Requirements for both training specialists and technical assistance specialists shall

include, but are not limited to;

2.18.1. Assisting with credentialing through the NH Early Childhood Professional

Development System and the NH Professional Registry;

2.18.2. Providing training and technical assistance in business practices for child

care programs to include information on shared services offered through

the New Hampshire State Early Learning Alliance (SELA);

2.18.3. Providing technical assistance to child care programs to support them to

implement the Strengthening Families approach;

2.18.4. Assisting child care programs with completing a written Emergency

preparedness plan based on the Incident Command System, and

completing a written Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP);

2.18.5. Assisting child care programs to create individual professional

development plans designed to increase teacher competency:

2.18.6. Training child care program staff how to implement the NH Early Learning

Standards;

2.18.7. Assisting child care providers to participate In NH Quality Recognition and

Improvement System (QRIS);

2.18.8. Assisting child care program staff to create and update annual workforce

records in the New Hampshire Professional Registry;

2.18.9. Availability to answer questions via telephone, email, at onsite visits, in-

person at one of the regional outreach offices and/or at SNHS CCR&R

sponsored trainings and events;
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2.18.10. Providing training and technical assistance around homelessness to child

care programs to help identify families who may not identify themselves as

homeless, but meet the McKinney-Vento definition of homelessness, to

understand the challenges these families face, and to connect these

families to resources in their community;

2.18.11. Providing information and assistance to License Exempt providers around

health and safety requirements, background checks and monitoring

requirements as outlined by the CCDBG Reauthorization. Information and

assistance may be provided on the Child Care Aware of New Hampshire

website, through newsletters, by phone or email support, or through on-

site technical assistance; and

2.18.12. Providing training and technical assistance In writing child care program

policies as advised by the Department. These policies may include, but

are not limited to, inclusion policies and health and safety policies.

2.19. The Contractor shall conduct post disaster assessments of child care programs, as

identified in the State Child Care Emergency Plan, if requested by the Department.

2.20. The Contractor shall appropriate a minimum often percent (10%) of the contract

funds for infant and toddler activities.

2.21. The Contractor shall support child care programs with the implementation of the

Pyramid Model, Including, but not limited to, providing trainings and coaching with

guidance from the Department.

2.22. The Contractor shall participate on the Pyramid Model State Leadership Team.

3. Cultural Considerations

3.1. The Contractor shall provide culturally responsive services to families and child care

providers from diverse language and cultural backgrounds.

3.1.1. CCR&R staff shall receive training in cultural competency;

3.1.2. Translation and Interpretation services shall be provided through several

venues.

3.1.2.1. Staff may translate written materials or speak with families;
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3.1.2.2. Interpretation services shall be available through the Language

Line;

3.1.2.3. The video remote option shall provide access to American Sign

Language through computers to ensure the accuracy of visual

cues; and

3.1.2.4. Written materials shall be made available In languages other

than English.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall examine and build on current knowledge to solidify

understanding of the cultural variations across the state and individualize

services when necessary to meet the needs of each area.

4. Staffing

4.1. The Contractor shall employ a minimum of fourteen (14) employees to manage and

Implement the required scope of services Identified In Section 2 Services to Be

Provided. All training and TA Team staff shall meet the qualifications of the NH Early

Childhood Professional Development System on the Master Professional level and

an emphasis will be placed on obtaining, and/or being qualified for an Infant/Toddler

Endorsement. Staff members shall Include, but not be limited to:

4.1.1. Program Manager:

4.1.1.1. Must have a minimum of a Master's degree In Early Childhood

Education, or a minimum of a Master's degree Including a

minimum of twenty-four (24) credits In approved coursework.

All credit requirements must Include a minimum of three (3)

credits focused on child growth & development;

4.1.1.2. Five (5) years of experience In early childhood education;

4.1.1.3. Planning and Implementation of at least twenty-four (24) hours

of group training of adults over a two (2) year period, or

successful completion of the Trainer Development Program

(TDP) and an additional twelve (12) hours of training post TDP;

and

4.1.1.4. Experience in supervision and leadership.
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4.1.2. Lead Outreach Specialist

4.1.2.1. Must have a minimum of an Associate's degree In Early

Childhood Education or a post-graduate degree with a
minimum of twenty-four (24) credits In Early Childhood
Education;

4.1.2.2. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.2.3. Excellent customer service skills;

4.1.2.4. Proficient computer skills In relation to data entry, word
processing and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.2.5. Five (5) years of experience working with children and families
in a community-based setting.

4.1.3. Four (4) Outreach Specialists

4.1.3.1. Must have a minimum of an Associate's degree in Early

Childhood Education, or a post-graduate degree with a
minimum of twenty-four (24) credits in Early Childhood

Education or approved coursework;

4.1.3.2. Proficient computer skills In relation to data entry, word

processing and spreadsheet management;

4.1.3.3. Five (5) years, experience working with children and families In

a community-based setting; and

4.1.3.4. Shall have the documentation required in Sub-section 4.2.

4.1.4. Professional Development Support Coordinator

4.1.4.1. Must have a minimum of a Baccalaureate degree In Early
Childhood Education (ECE), or a post-graduate degree with a
minimum of twenty-four (24) credits In ECE or approved

coursework;

4.1.4.2. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.4.3. Excellent customer service skills;

4.1.4.4. High degree of professionalism;
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4.1.4.5. Proficient computer skills in relation to data entry, word

processing and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.4.6. Five (5) years of experience working with children and families
in a community-based setting, at least two (2) of which are in a

program director supervisory or leadership role.

4.1.5. Training and Marketing Specialist

4.1.5.1. Must have a minimum of an Associates' degree in Marketing,

Computer Science, Graphic Design or related field;

4.1.5.2. Proven experience in CCR&R services In relation to marketing

and outreach activities can be substituted for field of study;

4.1.5.3. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.5.4. Excellent customer service and marketing skills;

4.1.5.5. Proficient computer experience in relation to data entry, word

processing, web design and database management and

reporting;

4.1.5.6. Knowledge of the Early Childhood field; and

4.1.5.7. Five (5) years of experience working in a community based

setting Is preferred.

4.1.6. Bilingual Support Specialist

4.1.6.1. Must be Bilingual;

4.1.6.2. Must have a minimum of an Associate's degree in Early

Childhood Education, Social Work or a post-graduate degree

with a minimum of twenty-four (24) credits in ECE or approved

coursework;

4.1.6.3. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.6.4. Excellent customer service skills;

4.1.6.5. Proficient computer skills In relation to data entry, word

processing, and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.6.6. Five (5) years' experience working with children and families in

a community based setting.
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4.1.7. Four (4) Training and Technical Assistance Specialists for the provision of

TA to child care programs.

4.1.7.1. Must have a minimum of a Baccalaureate degree in Early

Childhood Education, or a post-graduate degree with a
minimum of twenty-four (24) credits in ECE or approved

coursework;

4.1.7.2. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.7.3. Excellent customer service skills and a high degree of

professionalism;

4.1.7.4. Proficient computer skills in relation to data entry, word

processing, and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.7.5. Five (5) years' experience working in an early childhood setting,

at least two (2) of which are in a program director supervisory

or leadership role.

4.1.8. Infant and Toddler Specialist

4.1.8.1. Must have a minimum of a Baccalaureate degree in Early

Childhood Education, or a post-graduate degree with a

minimum of twenty-four (24) credits in ECE or approved

coursework of which at least nine (9) credits are focused on

Infant/Toddler content;

4.1.8.2. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.8.3. Excellent customer service skills and a high degree of

professionalism;

4.1.8.4. Proficient computer skills in relation to data entry, word

processing, and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.8.5. Five (5) years' experience working in an early childhood setting,

at least three (3) of which must be training and/or teaching to

adults on l/T content or consulting in l/T programs.
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4.2. The Contractor will ensure that all staff, subcontractors, and volunteers working on
this contract, have documentation of a criminal background and central registry
check that demonstrates no criminal offences.

5. Performance Measures and Goals

5.1. The Contractor will adhere to all the performance measures in the attached Exhibit
"A-1 - Performance Measures and Goals."
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to the

Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Section

Performance Measure and Goals

SPY

2020

Goal

SPY

2021

Goal

5.1.1. The number of families receiving Financial Assistance to Needy

Families (FANF) for whom child care referrals were provided. 1,500 1,500

5.1.2. The number of families not receiving FANF for whom child care

referrals were provided. 400 400

5.1.3. The percentage of families receiving FANF for whom child care

referrals were provided who were successful in having child care

needs met.

70% 70%

5.1.4. The percentage of families not receiving FANF for whom child

care referrals were provided who were successful in having child

care needs met.

70% 70%

5.1.5. The number of families whose first language is not English for

whom referrals were provided. 50 50

5.1.6. The number of initiatives in which CCR&R collaborates with

stakeholders. 20 20

5.1.7. The number of updates to the DHHS designated data system

database, including deleting duplicate and/or unnecessary data. 6 6

5.1.8. The total number of training opportunities offered to child care

program staff directly by CCRStR. 225 225

5.1.9. The number of child care program staff who receive training

around identifying and assisting families experiencing

homelessness.

100 100

5.1.10. The number of health and safety training opportunities offered

for child care program staff directly by CCR&R, and posted in the

New Hampshire Professional Registry.

60 60

5.1.11. The number of child care program staff who complete health and

safety training provided directly by CCR&R. 1,500 1,500

5.1.12. The number of other health and safety training opportunities

made accessible through referrals to the Spark NH PORTAL and

the NH Professional Registry.

20 20
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5.1.13. The number of child care providers for whom targeted technical

assistance was provided to change/expand their programs in

order to meet unmet child care needs.

10 10

5.1.14. The number of early childhood professionals for whom technical

assistance was provided who are awarded one or more

credentials through the NH Early Childhood Professional

Development System.

50 50

5.1.15. The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided to Improve their business management practices,

to Include Information on shared services offered through the

New Hampshire State Early Learning Alliance (SELA).

15 15

5.1.16. The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided who Implement the Strengthening Families

approach.

12 12

5.1.17. The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided who complete a written Emergency Preparedness

plan based on the Incident Command System or complete a

written Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP).

15 15

5.1.18. The number of child care program staff for whom technical

assistance was provided who complete an Individual professional

development plan designed to Increase competency.

100 100

5.1.19. The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided to implement the New Hampshire Early Learning

Standards.

15 15

5.1.20. The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided who participate in the NH Quality Recognition and

Improvement System (QRIS).

25 25

5.1.21. The number of child care program staff for whom technical

assistance was provided to create and/or update workforce

records annually In the New Hampshire Professional Registry.

250 250

5.1.22. The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided around Identifying and assisting families

experiencing homelessness.

10 10

5.1.23. The number of License Exempt providers for whom technical

assistance was provided around health and safety requirements,

background checks and monitoring requirements.

15 15

5.1.24. The number of child care providers whose first language is not

English for whom technical assistance was provided. 10 10
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U2SJ!S!L juasL jQlissL TtR*! SisasL jQd!j2s]_ 0*^
1. Total SatarvftVaoM W.OBOOO tET.oeo.oo 8»^°*0W
2. Emplpvw 6»^»fit» i*i.»2*oo 2*».S2*00 2«».««00 2«5«24 00

i. ConmFianw MOM 00 MOM 00 OOOOM O.OM.OO 2roM.co 27.000,00

4. Eoulomf* 3000.M jmsi 3 000.00 3.000.00

.EiitiL
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AE&-

MaOktal

OWca 11-540.00 11.540.00 10.540,00 10.540.00

Traval 30.0M.OO 30.000 00 30.000,00 30.QM.OO
7. Oeeueanev 23000.M ?5000 00 23.000.00 23.000.00

8. Currart Emanaaa

TaHcFona M.OOOM M.OOOOO '8.0M.OO 13000.00

Po««»o« 3.M0M 3.500.M 3.5M.M 3.600.00

SMacrletbna 4,0M,M 4.000.00 4.0M.M 4.0M.00

AutM and Laaal

Jngimnst, 2.371.50 2.371.50 2.371.50

Board Expaoaaa

Sofrmara '3000.00 '3000.00 '3000.00 M.OM.OO
to. MaftallrBJCemmunfcaHona 3500M «»MM 5.M0M 5.M0M

11. Staff E»)oailon and TraWna 30.0MOO M-MO.OO 3.0M.OO 3.0M.M 27.0M.OO 27,000.00

12. SuOcontfatt»'«OTamarm

22^2SJS^Sfi8S£l^SlSi^2SfiSSS2ttlL 03178,50 03178,60 03178.80 03178.50

TOTAL

tmfcuit AaA PwmmatDaaat

>8.178.80

• 7*

• 1.112.000.00 12.000.00
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S'tatie of New Hampshife

Department ofState

CERTIFIGATE

i;William M; Garfhcr,fSecret/iylbfStotepf the:%ie,pfNew'Hampshire^

HAMPSHiRE.SERVICES:iNC; is a.Ncw Hampshire Nonprofit Gorporation registered to'.tr^act bus}n(^ iiiiNcw Hamps^
May 28vJ 965.1 ft̂ crc^ify tlfat;tUl few arid dpcumcntis.required by Secreiaryiof State's ofTice^haveibeen-received andiisiin

good standingras &r.as:iltis.ofncens!concemed.

^B'usihes^ID: 65506

Ceitif[cate!Nuiribcn .0004499674
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S
o ■©

if.
%

IN testiKiony whereof.

.i;h'eretb set.myi'hand .and cause io.be affixed

.the.SwI-of the.:_Sjate of New

this [7th'dayof ApriilAibi ^OfO..

-William, M.^Qardner

Secretary of'State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1 , Orville Kerr , do hereby certify that:
(NsT'S of toe e-ected Officer of Ihe Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

I

1 ■ I am a duly elected Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

(Agency Name)

2, The following is a true copy of a resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on : September 8. 2018
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Executive Director

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and,other Instruments, and any amendments,.revisions,'
or modifications thereto, as, he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate. i

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or. revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the day of r/)rju^ 20^.
(Date Contracl Signed) (

4. Donnalee Lozeau is the duly elected Executive Director
(Name of Qontracl Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborouoh

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

By Orville Kerr .

natory)Titi Con rac

Orville Kerr, Secretary

day of /Vl .. 20 /?.

(Name of Elected Qfncer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

Notary Public

OEBRA 0. STOHRER
Notary Put)(k: - New Hampshire

My Commlssfon Expbes November 18,2020

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1.2005-



AC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

01/23/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFiRMATfVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

CGI Business Insurance

171 Londonderry Turnpike

Hooksen NH 03106

contact xerl Davis

(866)841-^00 (603)622-1618

A^ESS- 'rDavisQCGI8usinesslnsurance.com
mSURERtS) AFFOROMO COVERAGE NAtC •

INSURER A ■ Dindnnatl Insurance Company
INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Services Inc:

PO Box 5040

Manchester NH 03108

INSURER B; ̂ stem Alliance (fmr Great Falls)

INSURER c; l-loyds of London Insurance A15

INSURER 0: Philadelphia Insurance

INSURER E:

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 18-19 Master REVISION NUMBER:

TR5lf
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CUIMS.

KUeVEVPWUeVEPP
LIMITSTTPe OF INSURANCE

X

X

iKnUvnl POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCtAL GENERAL LIABtUTY

CLAIMS4AA0e X OCCUR
EPLI

Professional Liability

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY

,v«ic Liwii A^rvic^r

LOC

OTHER;

ETD 041 72 57

(MWDOrYYYY)

12/31/2016

tMM/DO/YYYYI

12/31/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (£■ occufTwcal

MEO EXP (Any one pwsonl

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Employee Benefits
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fEaaedOenH

1.000,000

100.000

10.000

1.000.000

2.000.000

2.000.000

S 1.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

s 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Pw pMon)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

ETA0417260 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 BODILY INJURY (Pw acddwit)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pfcddwll
Uninsured motorist Bi

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LiAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS4M0E

EACH OCCURRENCE 5.000.000

ETD 041 72 57 12/31/2016 12/31/2019 AGGREGATE 5.000.000

X RETENTION % 19,000
OTH-
1S_

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABLITV
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTTVE
OPFCERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandate^ In NH)
If y«t. dMcrfba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE

01-0000112165-01 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 EJ.. EACH ACCIDENT 500.000

EX. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 500.000

Pollution Liability
1242004475/018 01/24/2018 01/24/2019

Each Occurence Limit

Aggregate
1,000,000

1.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AdtfieonM Ramwlu Sctitdul*. may b« attachad H mora apaca la taqulrad)

Workers Comp: 3A State: NH. ME

Additional Insurance:
Carrier D: O&O/EPLI/Fiduclary Liability Coverage #PS01401015 Effective 12/2/2018-12/2/2019 51.000.000 Aggregate Limit

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant St

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord
1

NH 03301-3857

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Ail rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHmE SERVICES
The Community Action Partnership for Hilisborough and Rockingham Counties

Helping People, Changing Lives,

MISSION STATEMENT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is a private non-profit corporation chartered in the State of New
Hampshire, May 21, 1965 to serve as the Community Action Partnership for Hilisborough County in compliance
with the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. From 1965 through 1969, SNHS was known as the Community
Action Agency for Hilisborough County and served the City of Nashua and the twenty-nine towns. In 1969 SNHS
became the Community Action Partnership for the City of Manchester as well. In 1974 the agency's name was
changed to Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. In July 2011, Rockingham Community Action (RCA), the
Commumty Action Agency serving Rockingham Coimty, was merged with Southern New Hampshire Services. As
a result of this merger, SNHS now provides services to residents of the 65 towns and 3 cities in Hilisborough and
Rockingham Counties.

The Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 and subsequent federal legislation establishing the Community Services
Block Grant defme our basic mission. Under these provisions the fundamental mission of SNHS is:

A. To provide a range of services and activities having a measurable and potentially major impact on causes of
poverty in the community or those areas of the community where poverty is a particularly acute problem.

B. To provide activities designed to assist low-income participants including homeless individuals and
families, migrants, and the elderly poor to:

1. Secure and retain meaningful employment
2. Attain an adequate education
3. Make better use of available income

4. Obtain and maintain adequate housing and a suitable living environment
5. Obtain emergency assistance through loans or grants to meet immediate and urgent individual and

family needs, including the need for health services, nutritious food, housing, and employment related
assistance

6. Remove obstacles and solve problems which block the achievement of self-sufficiency
7. Achieve greater participation in the affairs of the community, and
8. Make more effective use of other programs related to the purposes of the enabling

federal legislation.

C. To provide on an emergency basis for the provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foodstuffs, and
related services, as may be necessary to counteract conditions of starvation and malnutrition among the
poor.

D. To coordinate and establish linkages between governmental and other social service programs to assure the
effective delivery of such services to low-income individuals.

E. To encourage the use of entities in the private sector of the community in efforts to ameliorate poverty in
the community.
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OUELLETTE & ASSOCIATES, P.A
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Mark R. Carrier, C.P.A.

Michael R. Dunn, C.RA.

Jonathan A. Hussey, C.P.A., M.S.T.
Steven R. Lamontagnc, C.P.A.

Gary W. Soucy, C.P.A.
Gary A. Wigant, C.P.A.
C. Joseph Wolverton, Jr., C.P.A.

Independent Auditor^s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statement
of financial position as of July 31, 2018, and the related combined statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 17, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
combined financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Organization's combined financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone; (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's combined financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of their
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

OueQette dC^^ociates, <PJL
Certified Public Accountants

January 17, 2019
Lewiston, Maine
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Jonathan A. Hussey, C.P.A., M.S.T. C. Joseph Woiverton, Jr., C.P.A.
Steven R. Lamonlagne, C.P.A.

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate's compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's major
federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2018. Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and affiliate's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's compliance.

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2018.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate as of and for the year ended July 31, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated January 17,
2019, which contained an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements. Our audit was
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the combined financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined
financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the combined financial statements as a whole.

OueCktte <^,^ociates, <2JL
Certified Public Accountants

January 17, 2019
Lewiston, Maine



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHrRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2018

Ffderai Grinlor

Pass-through Grantor
Proeram or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

.Number

Pass-Through

Identifying

Number

Subrecipient

Expenditures

Federal

Expenditures

FEDERAL AWARDS

U.S. Denartment of Aericiilfure:

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

WIC Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
infants and Children 10.557

10.557

I84NH703WI003

I74NH703WI003

$ S 1,266,078

114,559

U80,637

WIG Grants to States 10.578 I74NH781W5413 30,400

Pass-Through Belknap Merrlmack Community Action Program
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 10.565

10.565

201818Y800S44

20I919Y800544

120,535

9,185

129,720

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department of
Education

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 1,033,234

Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 96365

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ S 2,670356

U.S. Denartment of Hoiislne and Urban Develooment:

Direct Program

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 14.249 5 388,630

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department of

Health and Human Services

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 E17-IX:-33-OOOI 60363

Pass-Through Belknap Merrlmack Community Action Program

Lead-Based Pant Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 ■ 5,000

Pass-Through the City of Nashua, NH

Lead-Based Pant Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing 14.900 NHLB0574-14 2,970

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development S S 457,163

Subtotal $ 5 3,127,719



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

Federal Grantor

Pass-through Grantor

Program or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Pass-Through

Identifying

Number

Subrecipient

Expenditures

Federal

Expenditures

Amount Forward S S 3.127,719

U.S. Denartment of Labor:

Pass-Through Stale ofNew Hampshire Department of

Resources and Economic Development
WIOA Cluster

WIGA Adult Program 17.258 02-6000618 S  212,937 s 1,700,555

WIOA Dislocated Worker Formula Grants 17.278 02-6000618 162,752 1.870,134

Total WIOA Cluster 375,689 3,570,689

WIOA National Dislocated Worker Grants / WIA National

Emergency Grants 17.277 02-6000618 160360 617,175

WIOA Dislocated Worker National Reserve Technical

Assistance and Training 17.281 02-6000618 25,000

Total U.S. Department of Labor S  536,049 s 4,212,864

U.S. Denartment of Enerm-:

Pass-Through Slate ofNew Hampshire Governor's Office
Office ofEnergy and Planning
Weathcrization Assistance for Low-lncomc Persons 81.042 EE0006169

EE0007935

s 855,044

20,984

876,028

Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program 97.024 592600-007 10,646

Total U.S. Department of Energy: S s 886,674

U.S. Denartment of Education:

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Department

OfEducation
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.002

84.002

84.002

84.002

67011-ABE

67011-ABE

67011-ABE

6701 l-ABE

s 113,841

35,798

93,755

47,509

Total U.S. Department of Education $ s 290,903

Cornoration for National and Commiinitv Services:

Direct Program

Retired and Senior Volunteer Program 94.002 I7SRANH002 s s 106,968

Total Corporation for National and

Community Services s $ 106,968

Subtotal S  536,049 s 8,625,128



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2018

Fcderiii Grantor

Pass-through Grantor

Program or Cluster Title

Federal

CFDA

Number

Amount Forward

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

Direct Program

Head Start

Pass-Through State ofNew Hampshire Office of

Energy and Planning

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

Special Programs for the Aging, Title 111, Part B, Grants
for Supportive Services and Senior Centers

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire Department

OfHealth and Human Services

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Community Services Block Grant

Community Ser\'ices Block Grant Discretionary Awards

CCDF Cluster

Child Care and Development Block Grant

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of
The Child Care and Development Fund

Total CCDF Cluster

Pass-Through Manchester Community Health

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Projects of Regional and National Significance

Total U.S. Department of Health and

Human Services

U.S. Department of Homeland Security;

Passed-through Regional United Way Agency
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

93.600

93.600

93.568

93.568

93.044

93.558

93.558

93.569

93.570

93.575

93.596

93.243

97.024

Pass-Through

Identifying
Number

0ICH2057-05.00

0IHP0009-03-0I

G-I7BINHLIEA

G-I8BINHLIEA

17AANHT3SP

2017G996II5

2018G996li5

G-17BINHC0SR

G-17BtNHC0SR

2017G996005

2017G999004

1H79SM06I289

Subrecipient

Expenditures

$  536.049

639,059

53,575

692,634

Federal

Expenditures

S  8,625.128

S  6039.782

326,680

6.566,462

U23,955

9.126,358

I0.450JI3

18,143

2.770,651

232,776

3,003,427

l,525J2l

65,951

884,685

1.149,612

2,034,297

23,981

S  692,634 S 23,687,895

11,000

11,000

S  1,228,683 S 32324,023



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSfflRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

NOTE I: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate under
programs of the federal government for the year ended July 31, 2018. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate, it
is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE 3: HEAD START PROGRAMS CFDA #93.600

In accordance with terms of the grant award, the Organization has met its matching
requirements during the year ended July 31, 2018.

NOTE 4: INDIRECT COST RATE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate has negotiated an indirect cost rate of
8.60% with the Department of Health and Human Services.



Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Unmodified

V  No

_V ^None reported

V No

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with CFR Section
200.15o(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

CCDF Cluster

WlOA Cluster

Child and Adult Care Food Program
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

V  No

V None reported

Unmodified

Yes V  No

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? V Yes

Section II Financial Statement Findings

No matters are reportable.

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters are reportable.

CFDA Number

93.575/93.596

17.258/17.278

10.558

93.568

$970.534

No

10
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rNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of July 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related combined statements of activities,
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combined
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the combined financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organization's preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

nil Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate, as of July 31,
2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with GovernntenI Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated January 17, 2019

on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and affiliate's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

OueQetU ̂ L^ocUUes, <PJL
Certified Public Accountants

January 17, 2019
Lewiston, Maine
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Contracts receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Under applied overhead

Total current assets

FIXED ASSETS

Land

Buildings and improvements

Vehicles and equipment

Total fixed assets

Less - accumulated depreciation

Net fixed assets

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other liabilities

Refundable advances

Tenant security deposits

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

122,582

458,388

1,102,712

345,967

238,012

1,309,098

81,801

2018 2017

$  5,699,842 $  5,889,396

9,085,663 8,375,305

4,165,520 3,790,824

836,174 590,607

90,163 75,410

67,750 113,924

19,945,112 18,835,466

2,571,794 2,313,783

11,610,610 10,429,907

1,278,185 1,285,271

15,460,589 14,028,961

4,964,258 4,720,487

10,496,331 9,308,474

402,738 .  211,188

S 30,844,181 $ 28,355,128

121,437

471,715

1,330,368

326,281

347,332

1,137,688

68,705

3,658,560 3,803,526

3,134,219 2,330,118

6,792,779 6,133,644

24,051,402 22,221,484

S 30,844,181 $ 28,355,128

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenue S 36,935,915 $ 33,840,476

Program service fees 790,570 1,01 1,973

Local funding 318,992 352,618

Rental income 994,930 945,056

Gifts and contributions 638,712 207,972

Interest and dividend income 271,590 262,258

Unrealized gain on investments 441,314 761,151

Miscellaneous 640,735 633,151

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 41,032,758 38,014,655

EXPENSES

Program services:

Child development 8,424,337 7,698,835

Community services 1,449,210 1,504,282

Economic and workforce development 7,756,926 8,549,808

Energy 12,777,365 10,052,962

Language and literacy 370,697 344,985

Housing and homeless 238,541 181,366

Nutrition and health 2,486,119 2,390,236

Special projects 1,797,358 1,455,860

Volunteer services 114,704 158,879

SNHS Management Corporation 2,017,381 1,852,665

Total program services 37,432,638 34,189,878

Support services:

Management and general 1,770,202 1,766,597

TOTAL EXPENSES 39,202,840 35,956,475

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,829,918 2,058,180

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 22,221,484 20,163,304

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 24,051,402 $ 22,221,484

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2018

ProKraiu Ser\'iccs

Child

Development

Community

Services

Economic

Workforce

Development Enercv

Language aixJ
Literacy

Housing
and Homeless

Nutrition

and

Health

EXPENSES

Payroll J  4.957.052 $  954.145 S  2.665.005 S  1.604.803 J  260.923 $  108.074 $  996.641

Payroll taxes 408.351 75.089 211,297 134.215 22,698 8.701 82,048

Fringe benefits 1.165.602 126.449 394.224 368.108 12.404 16.013 205,632

Workers comp. insurance 103.257 9.387 6.542 16.946 651 271 32.119

Retirement benefits 262.948 84.961 173.276 83.274 6.498 6.622 56.860

Consultant and contractual 40.049 26.382 1.534.030 1.575.384 6.614 459 22.816

Travel and transportation 117.346 35.209 64,613 41,310 812 5.490 50.659

Conferences and meetings ■ 5.071 - 7,585 65 • 4.786

Occupancy 509.137 57.628 738,328 135.204 24.229 1.020 76.845

Advertising 9.803 - 8.489 1,442 25 - 150

Supplies 372.610 20.349 32.178 65,002 11.743 239 57,054

Equip, rentals and maintenance 21.468 82 39,839 19,776 934 23.648

Insurance 19.453 25.393 6.033 20,120 - 6,565

Telephone 67.962 22.505 46.995 19.322 2,398 420 44.357

Postage 3.837 201 1.481 34.823 350 82 3.683

Printing and publications 4.679 673 - "304 I.5II 275 224

Subscriptions - 635 - - - -

Program support
•

16.178
- 29.907 8.176 -

Interest 11.962 • - - - -

Depreciation 54.064 5.920 7.900 13.280 1.144 1.468

AssistarKC to clients 7.800 - 1.826.232 8.613.799 - 90.875 528.940

Other direct expense 246.533 10.013 32.666 18.899 - 294.475

Miscellaneous 85.920 446 11.094 2.190 9.522 5.009

In-kind 2.269.028 - - . . -

(Gain) Loss on disposal of assets . . . . . .

SUBTOTAL

Over applied Indirect costs
Eliminations

10.738.861

(2,314,524)

1.476.716

(27,506)

7.801.122

(44.196)

12,805,693

(28J28)

370.697 238,541 2.493,979

(7.860)

Sec indepeixlent auditor's repon and accontpanytng rtotcs to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2018

Program Services

Support

Services

SNHS Maitagemenl

Special Volunteer Management Total Program and

Proiects Ser>'ices Corporation Services General Total Ext>enses

EXPENSES

Pa)Toll S  63.372 $  75.363 S  422.932 S 12,108^10 S  1.258.069 S I3,366J79

Payroll taxes 5.433 6.159 42.979 996,970 96.197 1.093.167

Fringe benefits 1.447 13,772 137,202 2.440,853 154.995 2,595.848

Workers comp. insuraiKe 2.427 188 8,844 180,632 4,341 184,973

Retirement benefits 2.305 3,179 44,515 724,438 113.858 838.296

Consultant and contractual I.630.IOI 448 171.365 5,007,648 70.685 5,078J33

Travel end traiuporlation 2.655 1.698 55.755 375,547 10.124 385.671

Conferences and nKetings 3.706 . 26,557 47,770 770 48.540

Occupancy 13.874 • 470,606 2,026,871 25.489 2,052360

Advertising 75 25 83 20,092 125 20,217

Supplies 3.181 2.557 9.617 574.530 58.000 632,530

Equip, rentals aitd maintenatKe (23) 79 8.837 114,640 878 115.518

Insurance 1.353 1.226 34.976 116,019 13.745 129.764

Telephone 2.854 1.332 14.613 222,758 3.890 226.648

Postage . 271 940 45,668 17,288 62,956

Printing and publications - 38 ■ 7,704 913 8,617

Subscriptions -
1.000 551 2,186

-
2.186

Program support 22.782 101.335 178J78
•

178378

Interest . 43.543 55.505 - 55305

Depreciation 25.062 317.695 426,533 536 427,069

Assistance to clients 19.869 26,984 11,1)4,499 ■ 11,114,499

Other direct expense 867 2.767 3.836 610,056 6.398 616.454

Miscellaneous 188 4.602 71.187 190,158 1.651 191.809

Irt-kirtd - . 2.269,028 - 2,269.028

(Gain) Loss on disposal of assets (4.170) 2,429 (1.741) . (1.741)

SUBTOTAL I.797JS8 114,704 2.017,381 39.855,052 1,837.952 41,693,004

Over applied indirect costs . - - - (67,750) (67,750)

Ellin ioatfons - - . (2,422,414) . (2.422,414)

TOTAL EXPENSES 5  1.797J58 S  114,704 S  2,017,381 S 37,432,638 S  1.770J02 S 39,202,840

See indepeitdem auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2017

Pronram Services

Economic Nutrition

Child Community Workforce Language and Housing and

Development Services DeveloiKiKnt Enerev Literacy and Homeless Health

EXPENSES

Payroll $ 4.532.497 S  988.728 $ 2.598.061 $ 1.479.819 X 205.774 X  57.390 X  929.574

Payroll taxes 427.513 85.055 230.382 137.652 21.760 5.070 87.625

Frin);e benefits 1.056.679 142.258 381.689 277.583 13.620 12.219 182.882

Workers conip. insurance 133,004 12.323 8.425 18.616 673 201 37.044

Retirement benefits 239.765 84.534 148.790 84.574 6.106 3.822 49,817

Consultant and contractual 73.596 37.906 1.764.803 1.278.715 16.772 233 24.513

Travel and transportation 80.939 24.323 72.239 47.177 751 2.583 47.155

Conferences and nKetings 2.400 13.084 4.260 11.996 - 120 9.234

OccupaiKy 460.887 52.314 719.547 126.782 19.846 1.020 74.295

Advertisinu 14.820 2.535 31.291 1.335 50 - 75

Supplies 281.852 15.572 39.851 66.519 26.550 316 74.548

Equip, rentals and maintenance 13.830 6.236 27.993 20.144 1.378 •
24.174

InsuratKC 17,289 24.992 6.224 13.296 - . 7.479

Telephone 63.288 14.783 50.377 19.759 1.591 538 42.705

Postage 2,936 339 1.626 31.484 249 16 3.473

Printing and publications 6.182 1.454
• 340 939 -

Subscriptions •
1.769

- - • •

Program su^wn 559 20.105
-

32.990 8,588 7.270

Interest 11.952 - - - - •

Depreciation 42,373 3.666 7.443 14.269 4.341 2.146

Assistance to clients 7.800 - 2.443.026 6.409.725 • 97.838 515.249

Other direct expense 218.504 1.177 57.405 4.973 - 276.215

Miscellaneous 55.666 303 572 1.571 13.458 2.623

In-kind 2,636,675 - - - - •

Loss on disposal of assets . . 1.971 2.539 -

SUBTOTAL 10.381.006 1.533.456 8.594.004 10.081.290 344.985 181,366 2.398.096

Over applied indirect costs - - - - - -

Eliminations (2.682.171) f29.174) (44.196) (28.328) - (7.860)

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 7.698.835 S 1.504.282 S 8.549.808 X 10.052.962 X 344.985 X  I8U66 X 2J90.236

See indepeixient atidiloPs repon and accoinpanyini; notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Conlinued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2017

Prograrn Services

Support
Services

SNHS Management
Special Volunteer Management Total Program and Total

Proiecis Services Conroration Services General Expenses

EXPENSES

Payroll i  42.757 S  86.401 X  99.305 SI 1.020.306 S 1.239.055 S 12.259.361

Payroll taxes 3.963 7.879 27.908 1.034.807 105.184 1.139.991

Fringe benefits 1.929 15.102 64.008 2.147.969 157.709 2.305.678

Workers comp. insurance 2.237 281 5.461 218.265 5.085 223.350

Rclircmcnt benefits 1,871 4.448 21.647 645.374 118.221 763.595

Consultant and contractual 1.324.546 561 166.121 4.687.766 85.022 4.772.788

Travel and transportation 1.692 2.414 57.092 336.365 8.535 344.900

Conferences and meetings 3.829 1.454 18.790 65.167 1.080 66.247

Occtipancy 13.883 - 415.064 1.883.638 22.016 1.905.654

Advertising 25 467 2.712 53.310 50 53.360

Supplies 1.018 14.709 9.292 530.227 39.789 570.016

Equip, rentals and maintenance 1.301 236 17.935 113.227 2.116 115.343

Insurance 541 1.226 29.070 100.117 10.999 111.116

Telephone 2.935 1.368 16.575 213.919 7.809 221.728

Postage 18 560 980 41.681 16.595 58.276

Printing and publications • 996 9.911 38 9.949

Subscriptions ■
768 317 2.854

■
2.854

Program support 47.726 367.931 485.169 - 485.169

Interest - 39.429 51.381 . 51.381

Depreciation 10.810 331.535 416.583 536 417.119

Assistance to clients - 29.547 9.503.185 - 9.503.185

Other direct expense - 987 4.506 563.767 1.086 564.853

Miscellaneous 364 20.018 66.235 160.810 1.484 162.294

ln*l(it>d - . 2.636.675 . 2.636.675

Loss on disposal of assets (5.585) 50.760 49.685 - 49.685

SUBTOTAL 1.455.860 158.879 1.843.216 36.972.158 1.822.409 38.794.567

Over applied indirect costs . 9.449 9.449 (55.812) (46.363)

Eliminations . . . (2.791.729) . (2.791.729)

TOTAL EXPENSES S 1.455.860 $  158.879 S 1.852.665 S34.189.878 S 1.766.597 S35.956.475

See indepeixlent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the ftnatKial statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation

(Gain) loss on disposal of assets

Donation of low-income housing projects

Unrealized gain on investments

(Increase) decrease operating assets:

Contracts receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Under applied overhead

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other liabilities

Refundable advances

Tenant security deposits

Total adjustments

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Purchase of investments, reinvested dividends, and capital gains

Deposit to restricted cash accounts

Cash received on acquisition of housing project

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on long-term debt

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

2on 2017

$  1,829,918 $  2,058,180

427,069 417.1 19

(1,741) 49,685

(283,644) -

(441,314) (761,151)

(374,696) (375,606)

(245,068) 46,049

(11,575) 32,691

46,174 (46,766)

(38,707) (72,629)

(227,656) 355,379

19,686 (172,122)

(231,349) 135,595

171,410 (178,620)

(3,501) 6,051

(1,194,912) (564,325)

635,006 1,493,855

(511,155) (290,188)

4,170 19,085

(269,044) (1,261,528)

(191,550) (20,987)

256,536 -

(711,043) (1,553,618)

(113,517) (107,934)

(189,554) (167,697)

5,889,396 6,057,093

S  5,699,842 $  5,889,396

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2018 2017

Cash paid during the year for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of low-income housing projects:
Other current assets

Property and equipment
Other liabilities

Notes payable
Equity acquired

Cash received on acquisition

55,505

3,677

1,106,200

(164,006)

(918,763)

(283,644)

(256,536)

256,536

$  51,381

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

10



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY31,2018 AND 2017

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in New Hampshire's Hillsborough
County and Rockingham County. The Organization's programs provide assistance in the areas of
education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing and homeiessness
prevention. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of
poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental contracts. Services are

provided through Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation
The Organization prepares its combined financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which involves the application of
accrual accounting; and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other
liabilities. Net assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - Unrestricted net assets of the Organization are net assets that are
neither permanently restricted nor temporarily restricted by donor-imposed restrictions.

Temporarilv restricted net assets - Temporarily restricted net assets are net assets resulting
from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by
donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and
removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations.

Permanently restricted net assets - Permanently restricted net assets are net assets resulting
from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by
donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or
otherwise removed by actions of the Organization.

The Organization has no temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets at July 31,
2018 and 2017.

Combined Financial Statements

All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined
financial statements. The combined financial statements include the accounts of SNHS

Management Corporation because Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. controls more than 50%
of the voting power.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results may differ from these amounts.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the combined statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all
unrestricted highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Current Vulnerabilities Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New
Hampshire and Maine. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization
(FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution. In addition, on October 2, 2008, the Organization
entered into an agreement with its principal banking partner to collateralize deposits in excess of the
FDIC insurance limitation on some accounts. The balances, at times, may exceed amounts covered
by the FDIC and collateralization agreements. It is the opinion of management that there is no
significant risk with respect to these deposits at this time.

Accounts and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting

primarily based on reimbursable contracts, grants and agreements. Balances outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to bad debt
expense and a credit to the applicable accounts receivable. Management does not believe an
allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is necessary at July 31, 2018 and 2017.

Revenue Recognition
The Organization's revenue is recognized primarily from federal and state grants and contracts
generally structured as reimbursed contracts for services and therefore revenue is recognized based
on when their individual allowable budgeted expenditures occur. Refundable advances result from
unexpended balances from these exchange transactions. Federal and state grant revenue comprised
approximately 90% and 89% of total revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Contributions and In-Kind Donations

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-
restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the combined statements of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. In-kind revenues and expenses represent fair market value of
volunteer services and non-paid goods which were donated to the Organization during the current
fiscal year. All in-kind revenues in the fiscal year 2018 and 2017 were generated through the Head
Start and Economic Workforce Development programs. Since the recognition criteria is not met, no
in-kind revenues are recognized as contributions in the combined financial statements and the in-
kind expenses have been eliminated.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31,2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values
and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the combined statements of financial

position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying
combined statements of activities.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost if purchased or fair value if
donated. It is the Organization's policy to capitalize expenditures for these items in excess of
$5,000. Major additions and renewals are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which range from three to forty years. Depreciation expense for July 31, 2018 and
2017 was $427,069 and $417,119, respectively.

Fixed assets purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program
for which they were purchased or in other future authorized programs. However, the various
funding sources have a reversionary interest in the fixed assets purchased with grant funds. The
disposition of fixed assets, as well as the ownership of any proceeds is subject to funding source
regulations.

Advertising
The Organization uses advertising to promote programs among the people it serves. The
production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs associated with providing program services and management and general support services
are presented by natural cl^sification on the combined statement of functional expenses and have been
summarized on a functional basis on the combined statements of activities.

Subsequent Events
Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through January 17, 2019, which
represents the date on which the combined financial statements were available to be issued and
determined that any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure have been
considered in the preparation of these combined financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to clarify the principles for
recognizing revenue and to develop a common revenue standard for U.S. GAAP and International
Financial Reporting Standards. The core principle of the guidance requires entities to recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The guidance is effective for the Organization's year ending July 31, 2020. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial statements

13



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

Not-for-Profit Entities

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements ofNot-
for-Profit Entities. The main provisions of this update include:

•  eliminating the distinction between resources with permanent restrictions and those with
temporary restrictions from the face of the financial statements and requiring enhanced
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements to provide information about the nature,
amounts, and effects of the various types of donor-imposed restrictions;

•  disclosing qualitative information that communicates how an organization manages its
liquid resources available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year of
the statement of financial position date;

•  disclosing amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their functional
classification;

•  disclosing the method used to allocate costs amount program and support functions.

The amendments in this update are effective for annual financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning affer December 15, 2017. The guidance is effective for the Organization's fiscal year
ending July 31, 2019. This update may have a significant effect on the presentation of the
Organization's financial statements.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB released ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which provides users of
the financial statements a more accurate picture of the assets and the long-term financial obligations
of organizations that lease. The standard is for a dual-model approach; a lessee will account for
most existing capital leases as Type A leases, and most existing operating leases as Type B leases.
Both will be reported on the statement of financial condition of the organization for leases with a
term exceeding 12 months. Lessors will see changes as well, primarily made to align with the
revised model. The guidance is effective for the Organization's year ended July 30, 2021. The
standard requires a modified retroactive application to previously issued financial statements for
2019 and 2018, if presented. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the
Organization's financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2017 combined financial statement presentation to
correspond to the current year's format. Net assets and changes in net assets are unchanged due to
these reclassifications.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 2: RESTRICTED CASH

NOTE 3:

The Organization, as stipulated in many of the loan agreements associated with the housing projects
included in SNHS Management Corporation, is required to maintain separate accounts and make
monthly deposits into certain restricted reserves for the replacement of property and other
expenditures. In addition, the Organization is required to maintain separate accounts for tenant
security deposits and any surplus cash that may result from annual operations. These accounts are
also not available for operating purposes and generally need additional approval from oversite
agencies before withdrawal and use of these funds can occur.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The firework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuation techniques maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification 820, Fair Value Measurements, are described as follows:

Level I: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the organization has
the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such
as:

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets;

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability;

•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2
input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at July 31, 2018 and 2017.

Mutual Funds'. Valued at the net asset value of shares held on the last trading day of the
fiscal year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.

15



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY31,2018 AND 2017

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's assets at
fair value as of July 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018

Mutual Funds

(Level 1)

X9.n85.663

(Level 2> (Level 3>

$. $.

Total

X9.n85.663

2017

Mutual Funds

(Level n

S8-375.305

(Level 21

$.

(Level 2)

$.

Total

NOTE 4: INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments as of July 31:

2018 2017

Fair

Market

Cost Value

Unrealized

Gains Cost

Fair

Market Unrealized

Value Gains

Mutual Funds S9.0n5.274 $9.085.663 $ 80J89 $umm

The activities of the Organization's investment account are summarized as follows:

Fair Value - Beginning of Year
Dividends and Capital Gains
Purchases

Unrealized Gains

Fair Value - End of Year

2018

$8,375^05
269,044

44U14

$9.085.663

2017

$6,352,626

261,528

1,000,000

761.151

$8.37$.3Q5
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 3L 2018 AND 2017

NOTES: LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of long-term debt as of July 31:
2018 2017

SNHS. inc.

Mortgage payable to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon payment of
$11,275 was due on June 30, 2010. Interest is at 0.000%.
SNHS, Inc. is currently negotiating with the City of
Manchester to write off this debt. $ 11,275 $ 11,275

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Temple St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of $1,833 plus interest through 2020. Interest is
at 4.000%. 260,669 282,669

SNHS Management Corporation

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Epping, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $1,084 including interest through
2042. Interest is at 3.500%. 206,400 212,084

Mortgage payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest is at 10.000%, forgiven annually. 900,000 900,000

Note payable to City of Nashua secured by real estate
located on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real estate remains low income housing for 30 years.
Interest Is at 10.000%, forgiven annually. 20,000 20,000

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund secured by real estate located on, Vine St., Nashua,
NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only if real estate remains
low income housing for 30 years. Interest is at 10.000%,
forgiven annually. 250,000 250,000

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
West Pearl St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven only
if real estate remains low income housing for 40 years.
Interest is at 0.000%. 170.000 170.000

Subtotal S1.818J44 $1.846.028
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued^

Subtotal Carried Forward

Mortgage payable to bank secured by real estate located on
Silver St., Manchester, NH, payable in monthly installments
of $2,619 including interest through 2019. Interest is at
3.750%.

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Allds St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
installments of $2,613 plus interest through 2021. Interest is
at 4.832% and 3.982% at July 31, 2018 and 2017.

Mortgage payable to MH Parsons and Sons Lumber, secured
by real estate located in Derry, NH, payable in monthly
installments of $3,715 including interest through 2031.
Interest is at 5.500%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH, payable in
monthly installments of $3,327 including interest through
2033. Interest is at 7.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured by real estate located in Deerfield, NH with annual
principal repayments equal to 25% of cash surplus due
through 2032. Interest is at 0.000%.

Less: Current Portion

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total

2018

$1,818.344

15,661

88,844

418,612

372,416

392,924

150.000

3,256,801

122.582

$3.134.219

$  122,582

98,138

290,224

50,228

53,206

2.642.423

2017

$1.846.028

45,872

120,200

439,455

2,451,555

121.437
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 6: OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases various facilities and equipment under several operating leases. Total
lease payments for the years ended July 31, 2018 and 2017 equaled $708,379 and $678,755,
respectively. The leases expire at various times through October 2020. Some of the leases contain
renewal options that are contingent upon federal funding and some contain renewal options subject
to renegotiation of lease terms.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for the operating leases as of July
31, 2018:

2019

2020

2021

Total

$ 206,983

50,114

7.549

$ 264.646

NOTE 7: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 403(b) plan offering coverage to all of its
employees. Participating employees must contribute at least 1% of their wages, while the
Organization contributes 10% of their wages. The pension expense for the years ended July 31,
2018 and 2017 was $838,296 and $763,595, respectively.

NOTE 8; RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and
local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations are subject to
change by an act of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to
comply with a change.

NOTE 9: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Organization receives contract funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes
specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found not to have been made
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds.
No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not yet
been determined.

Cotton Mill Square

In 2015, SNHS Management Corporation entered into a contract as part of the Community
Development Investment Tax Credit Program with the Community Development Finance Authority
(CDPA) and was awarded $1,000,000 to provide funding for the development and adaptive reuse of
an abandoned historic cotton mill in downtown Nashua, NH. Under this program, the Project
(Cotton Mill Square) created 109 units of housing and was required to reserve 55 of these units for
low to moderate income households.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 9: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Cotton Mill Square (Continued)

As stipulated by the contract and after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA, SNHS
Management Corporation entered into a subrecipient agreement with the owners of the Project
(Cotton Mill Square LLC) to provide a promissory note and mortgage of the remaining award
amount of $800,000. The 20 year note to Cotton Mill Square LLC is non-interest bearing and the
principal is forgivable at a rate of 5% each year the Project maintains the required minimum of 55
low to moderate income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on August 22, 2014 and
remains in full compliance with the required regulations as of July 31, 2018 and 2017. SNHS
Management Corporation feels that it is extremely unlikely that the Project will fall into
noncompliance in future periods. Therefore, SNHS Management Corporation has not recorded
any contingent receivable or liability related to this transaction. The current unforgiven principal
amount at July 31, 2018 and 2017 is $640,000 and $680,000, respectively. The note repayment is
accelerated if the units fall out of compliance.

In October of 2017, the subrecipient agreement with Cotton Mill Square LLC was amended to
cease the annual 5% debt forgiveness. This modification effectively holds the promissory note
balance at $720,000 which will now be forgiven in full at the end of the agreement as long as the
Project maintains compliance with the original agreement's terms. This modification did not
change the contingent receivable or liability with SNHS Management Corporation.

J. Brown Homestead Property

On July I, 20II, Rockingham Community Acton (RCA) was acquired by SNHS. As part of this
merger, SNHS assumed all the assets, liabilities and obligations of RCA which included the J.
Brown Homestead Property.

The J. Brown Homestead Property was conveyed to RCA in 1999 by the Town of Raymond for $1
and a mortgage lien of $604,418. The property contains four apartments limited to low-income
seniors, office space for the Outreach operations, space for the Food Pantry operation, and a
common meeting room for use by Town of Raymond organizations. The Town of Raymond
included a requirement that the property be used for a social service center for a period of 20 years,
called the benefit period, after which this requirement terminates.

In the event that SNHS sells or otherwise conveys the property within the benefit period, the
remaining lien will be either paid from the proceeds of the sale or remain with the land to any
subsequent purchaser for the remaining benefit period.

This mortgage lien has no scheduled principal or interest payments and is forgivable at a rate of 5%
each year of the benefit period until it is completely forgiven in year 2019. The value of this lien at
July 31, 2018 and 2017 is $60,442 and $90,663, respectively. SNHS has no plans to sell or transfer
this property. Therefore, the contingent mortgage lien liability has not been included in the financial
statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

JULY 31, 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 10: ACOUISTIONS OF LOW-INCOME HOUSING PROJECTS

During 2017, SNHS Management Corporation acquired SNHS DeeiTield Elderly Housing Limited
Partnership (Sherbume Woods), located in Deerfield, NH. SNHS Management Corporation
obtained the project operations and assumed all assets, liabilities, debt and equity for the project at
fair market value. The acquisition and allocation of the projects was as follows:

Cash $ 256,536
Other Current Assets 3,677

Property and Equipment 1,106,200

Current Liabilities (164,006)

Notes Payable (918,763)
Equity Acquired (Contribution) ^283.6441

21
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Mark R. Carrier, C.P.A. Gary W. Soucy, C.RA.
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Steven R. Lamontagne, C.P.A.

INDEPENDENT A UDUOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA TION

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. (a nonprofit
organization) and affiliate as of and for the years ended July 31, 2018 and 2017, and our report thereon dated
January 17, 2019, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those combined financial statements, appears on
page I. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements as a
whole.

The combining information in Schedules A and B (pages 23-24), schedules of revenues and expenses - by
contract (pages 25-29), required by the State of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Energy and Community
Services and the required schedules and financial information for Whispering Pines II, J.B. Milette Manor, and
Sherbume Woods (pages 30-47), required by the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the combined financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the combined financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the combined financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial

statements as a whole.

OueSetU ̂Associates, (PA-
Certified Public Accountants

January 17, 2019

Lewiston, Maine

1111 Lisbon Street • Lewiston, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 • www.oacpas.net



Schedule A

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY31,20I8

SNHS

Management
SNHS, Inc. Corporation Sub-Total Elimination Total

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ 264.637 $  5.435.205 $ 5,699.842 $ $ 5.699,842

Investnienls - 9,085,663 9,085.663 - 9,085,663

Contracts receivable 4,135.001 30,519 4,165.520 - 4,165,520

Accounts receivable - 836.174 836,174 - 836,174

Prepaid expenses 46,764 43,399 90,163 - 90,163

Under applied overhead 67.750 • 67,750 - 67,750

Due from other corporations 2,279,157 764,706 3,043,863 (3,043,863) -

Total current assets 6,793,309 16,195,666 22,988,975 (3,043,863) 19,945,112

FIXED ASSETS

Land 266.860 2.304,934 2.571,794 - 2.571,794

Buildings and improvements 1.570.272 10,040,338 11,610,610 - 11,610,610

Vehicles and equipment 972.328 305,857 1,278,185 - 1,278,185

Total fl.xed assets 2.809.460 12.651,129 15,460,589 - 15,460,589

Less • accumulated depreciation 1,266,374 3,697,884 4,964,258 - 4,964,258

Net fixed assets 1,543,086 8,953,245 10,496,331 - 10,496,331

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 31.752 370.986 402.7.38 402.738

TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,368,147 S  25,519,897 $ 33,888,044 S (3,043,863) S 30.844,181

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion oflong-term debt $ 33.275 $  89,307 $ 122,582 $ $ 122,582

Accounts payable 349,453 108,935 458,388 458,388

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 91,720 1,010,992 1,102,712 1,102,712

Accrued compensated absences - 345,967 345,967 345,967

Accrued other liabilities 236,078 1,934 238,012 238,012

Refundable advances 1,190,201 118,897 1,309,098 1,309,098

Tenant security deposits 24.769 57,032 81.801 81,801

Due to other corporations 2.015.773 1,028,090 3,043.863 (3.043,863) ■

Total current liabilities 3.941.269 2,761.154 6,702.423 (3.043,863) 3,658,560

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion 238.669 2,895,550 3,134,219 - 3,134,219

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,179,938 5.656.704 9,836,642 (3,043,863) 6,792,779

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted 4.188.209 19,863.193 24,051,402 . 24,051,402

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 8.368.147 $ 25,519,897 S 33,888.044 s (3,043,863) S 30.844.181

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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Schedule B

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2018

SNHS

Management

SNHS. Inc. Corporation Sub-Total Elimination Total

REVENUES. OAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant/contract revenue $  36.952.093 $ J  36.952.093 $  (16.178) J 36.935.915

Program service fees 56.998 733.572 790.570 - 790.570

Local funding 2,970 316,022 318.992 - 318.992

Rental income • 994.930 994.930 - 994.930

Gifts and contributions 228.874 409,838 638,712 - 638.712

Interest Income 152 271.438 271.590 - 271.590

Unrealized gain on investments - 441,314 441,314 -
441,314

In-kind 2.269.028 - 2.269.028 (2,269.028) -

Miscellaneous 501.480 276.463 777,943 (137.208) 640,735

TOTAL REVENUES. GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 40.011.595 3.443.577 43.455.172 (2.422.414) 41.032.758

EXPENSES

Program services:

Child Development 10,738.861
-

10.738.861 (2,314.524) 8,424.337

Community Services 1.476.716 - 1.476.716 (27.506) 1.449.210

Economic and Workforce Dev. 7.801.122 - 7.801.122 (44.196) 7.756.926

Energy 12.805,693 - 12.805.693 (28,328) 12,777,365

Language and Literac>- 370.697 - 370,697 -
370,697

Housing and Homeless 238.541 - 238.541 -
238.541

Nutrition and Health 2.493.979 - 2.493.979 (7.860) 2.486.119

Special Projects 1.797.358 - 1.797.358 ■ 1.797.358

Volunteer Services 114.704
-

1 14.704
■

114.704

SNHS Management Corporation - 2.017.381 2,017.381 - 2.017.381

Total program services 37.837.671 2.017.381 39.855.052 (2.422.414) 37,432.638

Support services:

Management and general 1.770.202 . 1,770,202 - 1.770.202

TOTAL EXPENSES 39,607,873 2,017,381 41,625,254 (2.422.414) 39,202,840

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 403.722 1.426,196 1,829,918
-

1.829,918

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 3.784.487 18.436.997 22.221.484 22.221.484

NET ASSETS ■ END OF YEAR $  4.188.209 S  19.863.193 $ 24.051.402 $  - $ 24.051.402

Sec independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

State ofNH Governor's Office of Energy & Community Services

Headstart Program

For the Period

August 1, 2017 to July 31, 2018

Fund U 305

REVENUES

Program funding

In-kind

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

EXPENSES

4,903,465

1,540,664

3,872

6,448,001

Payroll 2,687,387

Payroll taxes 224,403

Fringe benefits 675,262

Workers comp. insurance 60,068

Retirement benefits 147,781

Consultant and contractual . 19,568

Travel and transportation 60,924

Occupancy 256,820

Advertising 2,246

Supplies 202,556

Equip, rentals and maintenance 4,127

Insurance 14,175

Telephone 32,592

Postage 1,725

Printing and publications 3,537

Depreciation 1 1,504

Assistance to clients 7,800

Other direct expense 94,208

Miscellaneous 12,435

In-kind 1,540,664

Administrative costs 388,219

Total expenses 6,448,001

Excess of expenses over revenue

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

State ofNH Governor's Office of Energy & Community Services

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

October 1, 2017 to July 31, 2018

Fund #630-18

REVENUES

Program funding

Other revenue

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

EXPENSES

9,243,426

50

6,997

9,250,473

Payroll 399,773

Payroll taxes 34,172

Fringe benefits 123,056

Workers comp. insurance 1,322

Retirement benefits 17,649

Consultant and contractual 26,894

Travel and transportation 9,113

Conference and meetings 535

Occupancy 49,444

Advertising 487

Supplies 21,665

Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,095

Insurance 996

Telephone 7,517

Postage 21,987

Program support 25,261

Depreciation 6,998

Assistance to clients 8,436,323

Other direct expense 2,163

Miscellaneous 994

Administrative costs 62,029

Total expenses 9,250,473

Excess of expenses over revenue

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

State of NH Governor's Office of Energy & Community Services

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August I, 2017 to September 30, 2017

Fund #630-17

REVENUES

Program funding $ 185,577

Total revenue 185,577

EXPENSES

Payroll 106,447

Payroll taxes 8,956

Fringe benefits 18,344

Workers comp. insurance 338

Retirement benefits 4,629

Consultant and contractual 608

Travel and transportation 1,086

Occupancy 6,381

Advertising 215

Supplies 5,991

Equip, rentals and maintenance 586

Insurance 648

Telephone 1,174

Postage 1,182

Program support 4,646

Printing and publications 304

Assistance to clients 5,847

Other direct expense 3,992

Miscellaneous 348

Administrative costs 13,855

Total expenses 185,577

Excess of expenses over revenue

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2018

State of NH Governor's Office of Energy & Community Services

Early Headstart Program

For the Period

August l,2017toJuly31,2018

Fund # 300

REVENUES

Program funding

In-klnd

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue

Total revenue

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Workers comp. insurance

Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Occupancy

Advertising

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

Telephone

Postage

Printing and publications

Interest

Depreciation

Other direct expense

Miscellaneous

In-kind

Administrative costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

1,336,317

582,219

2,972

1,921,508

688,000

56,097

150,227

15,158

34,670

3,739

6,429

118,750

555

61,523

2,848

2,471

16,377

46

513

11,962

25,036

35,728

4,774

582,219

104,386

1,921,508

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY CONTRACT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

Electric Energy Assistance

For the Period

August 1, 2017 to July 31, 201;

Fund U 665

REVENUES

Other revenue $ 785,737

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue 19,283
Total revenue 805,020

EXPENSES

Payroll 444,984

Payroll taxes 37,990

Fringe benefits 108,180

Workers comp. insurance 1,399

Retirement benefits 17,016

Consultant and contractual 21,094

Travel and transportation 5,350

Occupancy 55,574

Supplies 24,419

Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,685

Insurance 1,555

Telephone 8,720

Postage 11,310

Depreciation 507

Other direct expense 1,442

Miscellaneous 474

Administrative costs 62,321

Total expenses 805,020

Excess of expenses over revenue $

See Independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991 -046)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31,2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Tenant Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Rental Property

28,635

509

6,035

35,179

12,708

36,414

76,953

7,270

4,758

125,395

166,600

569,400

736,000

28,068

707,932

TOTAL ASSETS $  881,214

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable
Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information

5,886

2,729

62

8,677

12,708

15,947

200,514

216,461

237,846

643,368

881,214
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 3 U 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income $ 172,715

Laundry Income 2,215

Other Income 7,555

Interest Income - Unrestricted 30

Interest Income - Restricted 1,296

Total Income 183,811

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative 21,821

Utilities 33,879

Maintenance 63,734

Depreciation 14,316

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note 7,332

General Expenses 33,966

Total Expenses 175,048

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 8,763

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 634,605

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 643,368

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

SCHEDULE OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Advertising

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Legal Expenses

Telephone

Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Utilities

Electricity

Fuel

Water and Sewer

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies

Trash Removal

Snow Removal

Grounds/Landscaping

Elevator Repairs and Contract

Repairs (Materials)

Repairs (Contract)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Workman's Compensation

Insurance

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

8

14,400

2,209

126

69

2,973

2,036

21,821

18,406

7,655

7,818

33,879

320

1,260

16,710

1,150

2,920

17,374

24,000

63,734

14,316

7,332

28,877

203

118

4,768

33,966

175,048

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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WHISPERING PtNES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJ ECT No. A199991 -046)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FORTHEYEARENDEDJULY31.20I8

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Renlni Opcrotions

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service IrKome

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Operations Receints

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note
Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations PisbursemenLs

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization ofMorlgaoe

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

After Debt Service

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Agent

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBl'RSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfen to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Repayment of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

$  153.261

18,975

2.215

30

7.555

20.657

33,879

71.119

7,332

33.966

5,684

(26.475)

46.158

38.810

19,300

$  172.236

182.036

(166,953)

15.083

9.399

19.683

58,1 10

Net Increase or (Decrease! in Project Account Cash

Proiect Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Proiect Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

Petty Cash

Unrestricted Reserve tif npplicahlcl

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve
Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Proiect Account Cash

at End of Year

(29.028)

57.663

28.635

28.635

$  28.635

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. A199991-046)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

4,685

6,345

44,245

76,172

4,800 $

22,960

11,050

40 $ 4,767 $ 4,758

56

419

781

22,091

19,300

7,270

36,414

76,953

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $  131,447 $ 38,810 $ 1,296 $ 46,158 $ 125,395

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY3I,20I8

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  8,763

14,316

5,684

1 1,050

19,300

$  25,645

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTNo. AI9999I-046)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS* FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2001 $ 243,855 $ $ 243,855

12/31/2002 $ 243,855 $ . $ 487,710

12/31/2003 $ 243,855 $ 5.895 $ 725,670

12/31/2004 $ 243,855 $ 7,200 $ 962,325

12/31/2005 $ 243,855 $ . $ 1,206,180

12/31/2006 $ 243,855 $ 6,120 $ 1,443,915

12/31/2007 $ 243,855 $ . $ 1,687,770

12/31/2008 $ 243,855 $ $ 1,931,625

12/31/2009 $ 243,855 $ . $ 2,175,480

12/31/2010 $ 243,855 $ $ 2,419,335

12/31/2011 $ 243,855 $ . $ 2,663,190

12/31/2012 $ 243,855 $ . $ 2,907,045

12/31/2013 $ 243,855 $ 7,200 $ 3,143,700

12/31/2014 $ 243,855 $ . $ 3,387,555

12/31/2015 $ 243,855 $ . $ 3,631,410

7/31/2016 $ 142,249 $ . $ 3,773,659

7/31/2017 $ 243,855 $ $ 4,017,514

7/31/2018 $ 243,855 $ $ 4,261,369

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31, 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

37,774

8,618

46,392

15,755

138,851

96,364

6,538

241,753

176,000

1,071,375

1,247,375

62,422

1,184,953

TOTAL ASSETS $  1,488,853

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

3,545

282

3,827

15,772

40,657

1,170,000

1,210,657

1,230,256

258,597

S  1,488,853

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income

Laundry Income

Interest Income - Unrestricted

Interest Income - Restricted

Total Income

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Depreciation

General Expenses

Total Expenses

207,802

1,228

33

142

209,205

80,209

61,477

34,774

27,009

49,818

253,287

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

(44,082)

302,679

S  258,597

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Advertising

Management Fees

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Audit and Accounting Expense

Legal Expenses

Telephone

Other Administrative Expense

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Utilities

Electricity

Fuel

Water and Sewer

Other Utility Expense

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE

Maintenance

Custodial Supplies

Trash Removal

Snow Removal

Grounds/Landscaping

Elevator Repairs and Contract

Repairs (Materials)

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

Depreciation

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes

Payroll Taxes

Workman's Compensation

Retirement Benefits

Insurance

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

50

17,818

42,606

12,930

800

1,173

1,601

3,231

80,209

39,427

13,413

7,728

909

61,477

1,605

2,160

3,450

2,204

5,912

19,443

34,774

27,009

34,599

3,651

1,866

1,283

8,419
49,818

$  253,287

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

^ THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

SOURCE OF RTSDS

Rental Operations

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Rental Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Operations Receipts

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note
Interest • Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization ofMortcaee

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

AOer Debt Service

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Agent

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Repayment of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Expenses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

S  177.836

29,966

1.228

33

81,918

61,477

34.907

49.818

(22.427)

15,599

8,975

$  207,802

209.063

(228.120)

(19.057)

(19,057)

(22.427)

(21)

24.553

Net Increase or tDccreasel in Project Account Cash

Project Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Project Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Project Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

Petty Cash

Unrestricted Reserve (if applicable)

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve
Other Reserve

(66.037)

103.811

37.774

37,774

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Project Account Cash

at End of Year

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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J.B. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  6,534 $

123,172

96,306

5,599

4

80

58

$  6,538

138,851

96,364

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $ 226,012 $ 15,599 $ 142 $ $  241,753

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31, 2018

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  (44,082)

27,009

15,599

$  (32,672)

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31, 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operations

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

Tenant Security Deposits

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

Tax Escrow

Insurance Escrow

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements

Total Rental Property

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Rental Property

56,958

6,623

63,581

16,600

111,486

65,873

9,311

3,802

190,472

211,000

895,200

1,106,200

5,595

1,100,605

TOTAL ASSETS $  1,371,258

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Tenant Security Deposit Liability

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Due to Affiliate

Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

14,309

2,410

117

16,836

16,600

136,698

901,031

1,037,729

1,071,165

300,093

$  1,371,258

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAPPBA 901-02-05)

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2018

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income $ 66,083

Laundry Income 670

Donation 283,644

Other Income 582

Interest Income - Unrestricted 9

Interest Income - Restricted 677

Total Income 351,665

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative 11,228

Utilities 6,553

Maintenance 12,698

Depreciation 5,595

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note 6,557

General Expenses 8,941

Total Expenses 51,572

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 300,093

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 300,093

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2018

EXPENSES:

Administrative

Management Fees $ 4,500

Salaries and Wages 3,417

Fringe Benefits 1,036

Audit and Accounting Expense 925

Telephone 572

Other Administrative Expense 778
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 11,228

Utilities

Electricity 4,442

Fuel 1,334

Water and Sewer 200

Other Utility Expense 577
TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 6,553

Maintenance

Trash Removal 525

Grounds/Landscaping 431

Repairs (Materials) 11,742
TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 12,698

Depreciation 5,595

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note 6,557

General Expenses

Real Estate Taxes 6,938

Payroll Taxes 287

Workman's Compensation 182

Retirement benefits 342

Insurance 1,192

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 8,941

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 51,572

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2018

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rental Qpertitions

Income

Tenant Paid Rent

HAP Rent Subsidy

Total Renial Income

Service Income

Interest Income

Commercial Income

Other Income

Total Rental Otxralions Receipts

Expenses

Administrative

Utilities

Maintenance

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note

Interest - Other Notes

General

Other

Total Rental Operations Disbursements

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Amortization of Mortgage

Cash Provided bv Rental Operations

Afler Debt Service

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to Management Agent

Owner Advances

Transfer from Restricted Cash Reserves

{>n(l feyrgw}

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

Transfers to Restricted Cash Reserves

and Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Repayment of Owner Advances

Other Partnership Extxnses

Transfers to Tenant Security Deposit Account

$  31,338

34.745

670

582

14,673

6.553

13.836

6.557

8.941

3,423

(7.046)

13.910

12.881

S  66.083

67.344

(50.560)

16,784

13,361

6.864

12,881

Net Increase or fDecrease) in Proiect Account Cash

Proiect Account Cash Balance at Beginning of Year

Proiect Account Cash Balance at End of Year

Composition of Proiect Account Cash

Balance at End of Year

PyltY Cpgh

Unrestricted Reserve tif applicable!

Decorating Reserve

Operating Reserve

Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash and Unrestricted Reserves

Total Proiect Account Cash

at End of Year

7.344

49.614

56.958

56,958

56.958

Sec independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE THREE MONTH PERIOD ENDED JULY 31,2018

Description of Fund

Balance

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations

Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

$  2,666 $ 1,125

15,927 7,256

106,595 4,500

65,636

38

391

237

13,910

$  3,802

9,311

111,486

65,873

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves and Escrows $ 190,824 $ 12,881 $ 677 $ 13,910 $ 190,472

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY3I,20I8

NET INCOME

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT NONCASH DONATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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300,093

5,595

283,644

3,423

4,500

$  14,121



SHERBURNE WOODS

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

YEAR-TO-DATE COMPILATION OF OWNERS' FEE/DISTRIBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2018

YEAR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

DISTRIBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2003 $ 113,850 $ $ 113,850

12/31/2004 $ 113,850 $ $ 227,700

12/31/2005 $ 113,850 $ $ 341,550

12/31/2006 $ 113,850 $ $ 455,400

12/31/2007 $ 113,850 $ $ 569,250

12/31/2008 $ 113,850 $ $ 683,100

12/31/2009 $ 113,850 $ $ 796,950

12/31/2010 $ 113,850 $ ■  $ 910,800

12/31/2011 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,024,650

12/31/2012 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,138,500

12/31/2013 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,252,350

12/31/2014 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,366,200

12/31/2015 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,480,050

12/30/2016 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,593,900

12/30/2017 $ 113,850 $ $ 1,707,750

7/31/2018 $ 66,413 $ $ 1,774,163

See independent auditor's report on supplementary information
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.
PO Box 5040. Manchester. NH 03108 - (603)668-8010

The Community Action Partnership for HUisttorough and Rockingham Counties

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ̂  as of December 2018

Public Sector Private Sector Low-Income Sector MS. Policy Council

Reoresentina Manchester Reoresentina Manchester Reoresentina Manchester
Lou D'Allesandro Vice Chair Peter Ramsey James Brown Anna Hamel

Term: 4/18-9/21 9/18-9/21 Term Expires Nov. 2019

German J. Ortiz

Carrie Marshall Gross Orville Kerr, Secretary

Term: 9/17-9/20 Term 9/18-9/21

Reoresentinq Nashua Reoresentinq Nashua Reoresentina Nashua
Kevin Moriarty Treasurer Dolores Bellavance, Chairman Bonnie Renault

Term: 9/18-9/21 Term: 9/17-9/20

Wayne R. Johnson Shirley Peiletier

Term: 9/18-9/21 Term: 9/17-9/20

Reoresentina Towns Reoresentina Towns Reoresentina Towns

Thomas Mullins Deirdre O'Malley

Term: 9/16-9/19

Reoresentina Rockinaham Countv Reoresentina Rockinaham Countv Reoresentina Rockinaham Countv

Rep. Sherman Packard



Donnalee Lozeau

Community/Civic
Involvement' Current

•  Eagle Scout Board of
Review

•  St. Joseph Hospital Board of
Directors

•  NH Tomorrow Leadership
Council

•  Statewide Workforce

Innovation Board

•  American Council of

Young Political Leaders,
Alumni Member

•  Mary's House Advisory
Board

•  The Plus Company
•  NH Community Action

Assoc.

•  St. Mary's Bank Supervisory
Committee

Community/Civic
Involvement- Past

Reaching Higher NH
NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission

Governor's Transportation
Committee

Mayor's Task Force on
, Youth, Co-Chair

Big Brothers Big Sisters
Board of Directors, Past

President; current Big Sister
Manchester Community
Resource Center. BOD
Greater Nashua Dental

Connection BOD, Founding
Member

Health Care Fund

Community Grant Program
Advisory Council
Nashua Youth Council BOD

Great American Downtown

Servicelink BOD

NH Energy and Climate
Collaborative

Health Care District

Council V

Task Force for the Renewal

of Judicial Conduct

Procedures

Domestic Violence

Coordinating Council Nashua
Discipline Review Committee
Nashua School District

Nashua Community College
Advisory Board
Nashua Airport
Authority, Commissioner
US Conference of Mayors
Nashua Legislative
Delegation. Chair
and Vice Chair

No Labels

Fix the Debt

Experience

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc.
(January 2016-Pre8ent)

Executive DIrector/CEO

Manchester, NH

Development and oversight of Community Action Agency serving all of
Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties '

City of Nashua, New Hampshire
(2008-2016)- Elected

Mayor

•  Overall day to day management of city operations
•  Annual budget development and oversight

•  Chair of Board of Public Works

•  Chair of Finance Committee

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
(1993-2008)

Director of Program and Community Development

Nashua, NH

Manchester, NH

•  Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborough County through
community outreach

•  Developed partnerships, collaborations and new initiatives \Mth service
providers and businesses

•  Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before local
boards, commissions and departments relative to housing, support services
and economic development

•  Designed and implemented strategies for developing working relationships
with town and city officials, local service providers and appropriate private
sector officials In order to project a positive image of Southern New
Hampshire Services. Inc.

•  Developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

•  Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless women

•  Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy Programs

•  Expanded Head Start Services

•  Secured property and developed sites for two outreach office locations and
four housing developments

•  Developed the program and secured the site for Economic Opportunity
Center

City Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991) Nashua, NH
City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH

Co-Owner/Operator

•  Operated 450 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts

•  Responsible for oversight of the day to day operations and restaurant
management to include hiring and firing of employees, employee
performance evaluations and scheduling of staff

•  Manage Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable, purchasing, auditing,
deposit, and check processing functions for the restaurant

•  Responsible for compliance with local, state and federal requirements as
related to; licenses, taxes, fees and staff



Past Community/Civic
Involvement Continued

• American Legion Granite Girts
State (student advisor

•  NH Center for Public Policy
Studies

• Nashua Senior High School
Senate- Community Advisor

• East Hollis Street Master

Plan-Steering Committee

« New Hampshire Criminal
Justice Resource Center,
Director

• Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding
Member

• Reclaiming Futures, local
asset building development
collaborative, founding
member

• Mayor's Task Force on
Housing, Chair

• Greater Nashua Asset

Building Coalition, Founding
Member

• Greater Nashua Healthy
Community Collaborative,
Member

• New Futures, Adolescent

Treatment Collaborative,
Member

• NH Workforce Housing
Council, Member

• Continuum Care for the

Homeless, Member

• United Way Community Needs
Assessment Committee,
Member

• New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation State Board,

Member

Elected Office . ~~

NH state Representative, Hillsborough County, District 30
(1984-2000)

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives
(1995-2000)

•  Addressed constituent concerns

•  Assisted Non-Profit organizations and local businesses with
governmental concerns and steering legislation through the political
process by working with members and leadership in the NH House of
Representatives and the NH Senate and representatives of the
Executive and Judicial branches

•  Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content;
•  Presided over House sessions and coordinated Committees of

Conference

•  House Staff and Security oversight
•  Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or in the absence of

the Speaker

Committee Assignments:
•  House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman
■  House Legislative Administration Committee
■  Joint Facilities Committee

•  Chair, New member Orientation
•  House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice

Chairman

•  House Judiciary Committee
■  Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman
■  Member State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:
•  Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee
•  Juvenile Justice Commission. Chairman
■  Supreme Court Guardian Ad LItem Committee
•  Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee
•  Work Force Opportunity Council
■  Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council, member

■  Chairman Subcommittee on Offenders,

■  Space and Prison Programming
"  Co-Chair Juveniles subcommittee

■  National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice Vice
Chair

■  Council of State Governments Intergovernmental Affairs,
Corrections and Public Safety

Education & Training

CCAP, Certified Community Action Professional

Rivier College, Nashua, NH- Undergraduate work in Political Science

Restaurant Management Institute

Mediation and Alternative Dispute Resolution Training

Leadership Institute, Aspen

Computer Skills, Microsoft Office Applications

Justice of the Peace



RYAN C
.  D

CLOUTHIER

'0

0

OBJEaiVE

Seeking a leadership role which will allow me the opportunity to utilize and build upon my knowledge and
passion for the work performed by Community Action Agencies in the state of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being the support and strength for the Communities we serve.

EXPERIENCE

Deputy Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
FEB. 2018-PRESENT

Serving as part of the Executive Management Team and is responsible for providing inspiring leadership to the
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) senior management team and developing a performance culture to
ensure the effective management of a comprehensive array of over sixty programs. The Deputy Director will tie
the various component programs including: nutrition; housing; energy; workforce development; income
enhancement; education; and elderly services to the agency, to each other, and to the general community, by
promoting and communicating the mission of Community Action. In conjunction with the Executive Director
and Fiscal Officer the Deputy Director provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively involved with the
agency's high-performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and management of the
program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fulfill
the agency's mission, and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, and city regulations, certifications,
and licensing requirements.

Energy and Housing Operations Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018

Responsible for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs. Information Technology, Housing and
Maintenance programs with mission, vision and leadership. Responsible for the planning, implementation, and
evaluation of all facets of fiscal and program management, effectiveness while providing general oversight for all
of the program's administration and day-to-day management, including budget management, grant writing and
purchasing. Also responsible for maintaining a working relationship with governmental officials, local boards
and agencies in developing and managing the programs. In conjunction with the Executive Director and Fiscal
Officer this positions provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively involved with the agency's high-
performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and management of program content as
well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fulfill the agency's
mission and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, city, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy Director I Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.

2013-2016

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs, Crisis Programs, Weatherization Program, Lead Hazard Control Program, and
YouthBuild Program for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties. Develop and Maintain relationships with
federal, state and local grantors. Intervene on behalf of the Community Action pertaining to the Core Utility
Weatherization Energy Efficiency Programs. Maintains a strong working relationships with OCA, NH Legal
Assistance, Office of Strategic Initiative, DOE, Liberty Utilities, Eversource, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Participates in multiple Healthy Home
strategic planning committees.

Weatherization Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2006-2013

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the
Weatherization, Lead Abatement, and YouthBuild Programs for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal, state and local grantors. Intervened on behalf of the
Community Action Association during the merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along with filings
pertaining to the Core Energy Efficiency Programs. Developed strong working relationships with OCA, NH



Legal Assistance, Office of Energy and Planning, DOE, Liberty Energy, Eversource, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA,
NREL, Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Served on the Department of
Energy special task force designed to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weatherization Energy Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch" pilot effort which became a
statewide practice and has received national recognition

Energy Auditor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2004 - 2006

Responsible for performing field energy audits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerized formats to determine cost effectiveness of conservation measures needed; generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct proper follow through and field inspections to assure quality installations and
client satisfaction.

Net>vork Analyst | Genuity
2004 - 2006

Responsible for monitoring the Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL Domestic and International subscribers
including Japan, USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and troubleshooting problems/outages and
configuration issues, on different types ofCisco routers. Lucent APX's. MAX's. and Nortel CVX's.
Troubleshooting consists of isolating problems through head to head testing with dlfTerent Telco's. Also
responsible for creating, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a group ticketing queue. Demonstrated strengths
in the areas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
1994-1998: Dover High School
Other: Weatherization written and field certification. Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, multiple national and regional weatherization best practices trainings. Intro to Cisco routers, T1 and
T3 design and troubleshooting training, ATM and Frame Relay network design training, LAN and WAN
training, 0C3, OC48, and OC192 design and troubleshooting training, BP! Energy Analyst. Lead contractor
abatement Certification, RRP certification, OSHA 30 hour worker safety, DOE Lead Safe Weatherization
certification.

SKILLS

Problem solving

New Business Development

Social Media

Public Speaking

Data Analysis/Analytical thinking

Strategic Planning

Operations Management

Contract Negotiations

Team and Relationship building

Planning and forecasting

Budget and Financial management

Leadership

Community Assessment

Computer skills specific to job include,

TREAT, NEAT. OTTER, FAP/EAP

Microsoft 365, PowerPoint, Outlook,

Word, Excel, Web, EmpowOR and CSST
and many others that can be beneficial.

ACTIVITIES/ACCOMPLISHMENTS

•  Numerous press articles related to Weatherization including visits from the Assistant Secretary of Energy
Efficiency from the Department of Energy and Vice President Joe Biden.

Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.

Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.

Union Leader 40 under 40 Class of 2015.

Vice President of the Neighbor helping Neighbor Board.

Member of the Energy Efficiency and Sustainable Energy Board.

Member of the Residential Ratepayers Advisory Board.



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 years,of non-profit experience and over 20 yearis of broad
experience in manufacturing, dlstflbutlbh, reorgahizatlons, rtiergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
plannlng/forecastlnjg and establishing &.monitoring performance metrics In a manufacturing environment.
Experienced in pnvate;and public.cbrpbratlons, including 8 years In a private equity environment with a strong
focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P8tL, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skijls at staff leadership,-training,and development In a team
environment. Professional Experience:

•  Fiscal Officer In nonprofit organization

•  Controller in MFG & Distflbutlori

•  Treasury and Cash Flow Management

•  Financial & Capital Budgeting, Reporting & Control

•  Cost Accounting Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business Performance Metric E^abllishment and Measurement

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Sefvices> Manchesteti NH 5/2009-Present
Southern New Hamps;hire Serylces'(SNHS) is a non-profit entity dedicated to helping people helpithemselves;

SNHS accorriplishes this through a variety.of-programs,offered atcenters, offices, clinics, and Intake sights
located throughput Rocklngham.and Hillsborough counties. The agency also oversees'29. housing facilities
with approximately 1000 tenants. SNHS receives and administersS3,6 million In program .funds annually with
over 450 employees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present

•  Oversee financial and accounting compliahce,.malhtainlng controls and managing potential business
risks

• Manage the annual budget process and analysis activities

•  Prepare presentation for Board of Directors meetings presenting the organization's financial results
•  Develop and maintain banklng.relatlonshlps
• Manage the Annual Audit process

Sienior Accountant 5/2009-1/2017
Assisted Fiscal Director in overseeing ajl fiscal and financial activities Including compliance with federal state,
and funding source requlrenients as well as accprdanceiwlth GAAP

•  Developed and Irhplemented Indirect cost calculation and Interfaced with General Ledger
• Monitored and prepared monthly budget-vs actual reporting; recommended adjustments and forecast

spending

•  Created specialized reports for the individual grant's reporting requlrernents

•  Designed allocation methods for properly bllllng.'shared Items to Individual grants and programs'
•  Prepared nionthly agency prbgram reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review



James M. Chaisson

WOOD STRUCTURES, INC. Blddeford> ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, is a highly leveraged business owned by Roark Capital, a private equity fund, headquartered in Atlanta,

GA. WSI is a $70 millioh rhanufacturer of roof and floor'trusses, wall panels arid a distributor of engineered
wood products. The compan/s productis are sold into the residential and light commerclial construction
markets

Controller 2006-4/2009

Managed all aspects of accounting and reporting in a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products dlistribution location that Included 2 locations in Maine and 1 in Massachusetts.

•  Calculated and assisted in the management of the compan/s covenants

• Worked closely with senior management during the sale process frorh the seller (Harbour Group) and
buyer (Roark Capital)

•  Identified cost drivers and implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement

•  Oversaw the payroll function of 160+ employees

Accounting Manager 2001-2006

Recruited to cornpariy to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accounting processes. Responsible for overseeing the accounting of 2 locations in Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting protocols of the company used by both equity sponsors

•  Educated, motivated and developed.a staff of 3 to succeed in their rolls of financial responsibility
•  Identified and implemented processes and procedures for alt Intercompany sales,.tran^ers;

consolidation and eliminations

•  Streamlined the:payroll process that included transferring to an external supplier (ADP), which reduced

cost by 40%

•  Conducted physical inventories and defihed their policies and procedure at ail locations.

VISHAY SPRAGUE, Sanford, ME 1978-2001
VIshay Sprague Is a division of Vishay Intertechnology Inc. (NYSELVSH) a,global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic cornppnents. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum

capacitors with annual.sales of $200 million and 1>400 employees.

Plant Cost Accountlna.Manaaer. 1997-2001

Division General Accounting Manager 1995-1997

Division dperatlon Accountant 1989-1995

Division Fixed Asset Accountant 1987-1989

Master Enaiheerind Technician 1984-1987

Lead Production Technician 1978-1984

EDUCATION

NASSON COLLEGER, Springvale, ME

B.S. in Business Administration



Vendor Name:

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Project Name:
Child Care Resource & Referral Services

Amendment #4 to RFP-2016-DCYF-01

BUDGET.PERIOP: - — SPY 2020

Name & Title Key AdmihiMrative Personnel

Annual Salary of

Key

Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of

Salary Paid by

Contract

Total Salary

Amount Paid by

Contract

Donnalee Lozeau, Executive Director $185,294 0.00% $0.00

Ryan Clouthier, Deputy Director $112,348 0.00% $0.00

James Chalsson $125,962 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $0.00

BUDGET PERIOP:_^ - SPY 2021

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

Annual Salary of

Key

Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of

Salary Paid by

Contract

Total Salary

y^ount Paid by

Contract

Donnalee Lozeau, Executive Director $190,667 0.00% $0.00

Ryan Clouthier, Deputy Director $115,606 0.00% $0.00

James Chaisson $129,614 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00

$0 0.00% $0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $0.00



JefTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Maureen Ryan
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9646 1-800-862-3346 Ext. 9546 .

Fax:603-271-4232 TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 3, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services,, Division for Children, Youth and Families to
exercise a final renewal option to an existing agreement with Southern New Hampshire Services
(Vendor #91891) for the provision of statewide Child Care Resource and.v Referral Sen/ices by
increasing the price limitation by $1,980,000 from $1,980,000 to $3,96b,000^ahd-'extending the contract
completion date from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2019. Governor and Executive Council approved the
original agreement on May 27, 2015 (Item #21) and subsequent amendments on May 4, 2016 (Item
#5A) and August 3, 2016 (Item 5B),'100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 and
2019 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
ability to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office without Governor
and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY ASSURE

Fiscal

year

Class Title Activity

Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

Decrease

Modified

Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Pgr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 $990,000

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Pgr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 $990,000

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Pgr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 $990,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Pgr Svcs 42117709 $990,000 $990,000

Total $1,980,000 $1,980,000 $3,960,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to renew contract services for the provision of a statewide
Child Care Resource and Referral program that assists families in securing high quality child care for
their children; refer families to community supports, as needed; and assist child care programs to
improve quality, by provided a centralized network of services for families in need of child care and
community services, and for child care service providers.

Child Care Aware of New Hampshire, a statewide Child Care Resource and Referral
Program of Southern New Hampshire Services, provides a variety of information and resources to
families which include an online provider search, links to a variety of family and community resources.
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as well as information regarding financial assistance. Child care providers are linked to professional
resources, technical assistance and training which improves program quality.

The Division for Children, Youth and Families Child Development Bureau administers funds
available through the Federal Office of Child Care Child Care and Development Fund. These funds
support eligible low-income families by providing child care financial assistance and by supporting a
variety of activities that assist them in securing high quality child care. These federal funds also
support continuous quality improvement of early childhood and child ciare programs through a variety of
trainings which include Child Care Basics, health &■ safety trainings, leadership development and other
topics recommended by the CDB, Child Care Licensing or as requested by child care providers.
Targeted technical assistance regarding Emergency Preparedness, Credentiallng. and NH Early
Learning Standards is also provided, which result in positive outcomes for children.

The ability to consistently collect, utilize and report accurate data is necessary to meet the
requirements of the Federal Office of Child Care and the recently reauthorized Child Care and
Development Block Grant. This is accomplished through this contract by use of the Child Care
Aware® of America Data Suite.

This contract was competitively bid.

The original contract includes the option for the Department to renew the contract for up to hhrtt
(3) periods of two (2) years each, subjeict to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council. The Department is
requesting a final renewal of contracted services through this amendment. These services will be
reprocured.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request Child Care Resource and
Referral services may not be available to families and child care programs, which could result in lack of
alignment In child care practices and/or services including failure to increase access to high quality
child care for low-income families. This would also result in the Department being out of compliance
with the Child Care and Development Fund Federal Plan and the new requirements of the Child Care
and Development Block Grant Act, signed into law on November 19, 2014.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 93.575, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children and Families, Child Care and Development Block Grant

Area Sen/ices: Statewide
I  »

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Maureen U/Ryan
Dir(^ct(

Approved by:
frey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services

This 3rd Amendment to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #3") dated, this. 3"* day of November, 2016 Is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
non-profit corporation with a place of business 40 Pine Street. Manchester, New Hampshire.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 27. 2015 (item #21) and amended on May 4,2016 (item #5A) and August 3. 2016 (Item #B). the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the
Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement, and Exhibit C-1
Paragraph 3, the State may renew the contract for three periods of two (2) years each by written
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council; and;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the Contract for two (2) years; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Item 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2019

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Item 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,960,000

3. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, 2.2.5

CCR&R staff will make connections "with McKinney-Vento Liaisons to identify children who may
not be schoolage, but require child care services, as well as schoolage children who are in need
of before/after school care. Connections may be made through the Director of the Office of
Homeless Education at the NH Department of Education, and will minimally include information
about Child Care Resource and Referral and the services they provide.

4. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, 2.13.2.3.2 to read:

Updates sent on the 1S*** of each month through "At-A-Glance" editions will also consist of training
reminders for trainings coming up and for trainings that are still available for registration.

5. Exhibit A, Scope of Services. 2.15 to read:

The Contractor will provide technical assistance specialists that meet the specific qualifications
described In the New Hampshire Early Childhood Professional Development System for Mentor,
Program Consultant or Allied Professional at the Master Professional level. The Contractor will
provide training specialists that meet the specific qualifications described in the New Hampshire
Early Childhood Professional Development System for Workshop Trainer. Faculty or Allied

Amendment #3
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Professional at the Master Professional level. The Training and Technical Assistance Specialists'
activities will include but not be limited to:

6. Exhibit A, Scope of Services, 2.15. 2 to read:

Providing training and technical assistance in business practices for child care programs, to
include information on shared services offered through the New Hampshire State Early Learning
Alliance (SELA).

7. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, 2.15.10

Providing training and technical assistance around homelessness to child care programs to help
identify families who many not identify themselves as homeless, but meet the McKinney7Vento
definition of homelessness. to understand the challenges these families face, and to connect
these families to resources in their community.

6. Add Exhibit A. Scope of Services. 2.15.11

Providing information and assistance to License Exempt providers around health and safety
requirements, background checks and monitoring requirements as outlined by the CCDBG
Reauthorization. Information and assistance may be provided on the Child Care Aware of New
Hampshire website, through nevi^letters, by phone or email support, or through on-site technical
assistance.

9. Add Exhibit A-1, Amendment #3 .

10. Add Exhibit B-2, Amendment #3

11. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3

/-

Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

This amendment shaii be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approvai.

iN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire ̂
Department of Health and Human Services

Dafe ( NAME
TITLE

Date Ldl —

Acknowledgement: / j / t
State of'>Lt^mL>yuU//"<L County ol/rrVfsirfC-ujj ̂  on . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person l^^entified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and TiUe of Notary or Justice of the Peace

OEBRA 0. STOHRER
Notaiy PubUc • New Hampshire

My Commteion E}q)lres November 18,2020

Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

The preceding Amendment^, haying BeenTevlewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Vn n
Name:
Tte:

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Amendment #3
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Exhibit A-1, Amendment #3 - Performance Measures and Goals

RFP

Section

Performance Measure SFY

2018

Goal

SFY

2019

Goal

3.2.2 The number of families receiving Financial Assistance to Needy
Families (FANF) for whom child care referrals were provided.

1500 1500

3.2.2 The number of families not receiving FANF for whom child care

referrals were provided.

400 400

3.2.2 The percentage of ̂mllies receiving FANF for whom child care

referrals were provided who were successful in having child care

needs met.

70% 70%

3.2.2 The percentage of families not receiving FANF for whom child

care referrals were provided who were successful in having child

care needs met.

70% 70%

3.3.1 The number of families whose first language is not English for

whom referrals were provided.

SO 50

3.2.3 The number of initiatives in which CCR&R collaborates with

stakeholders.

20 20

3.2.4.5 The number of updates to the NACCRRA Data Suite (NDS)

database, including deleting duplicate and/or unnecessary data.

6 6

3.2.6 The total number of training opportunities offered to child care

program staff directly by CCR&R.

225 225

3.2.6 The number of Child Care Basics training opportunities offered

through the New Hampshire Professional Registry (Training

Registry module In the NACCRRA Data Suite (NDS) for child care

program staff.

45 45

3.2.6 The number of child care program staff who complete Child Care

Basics training.

1000 1000

3.2.6 The number of child care program staff who receive training

around identifying and assisting families experiencing

homelessness.

100 100

3.2.8 The number of health and safety training opportunities offered
for child care program staff directly by CCR&R, and posted in the

New Hampshire Professional Registry.

60 60

3.2.8 The number of child care program staff who complete health and
safety training provided directly by CCR&R.

ISOO 1500

3.2.8 The number of other health and safety training opportunities

made accessible through referrals to the Spark NH PORTAL and

the NH Professional Registry (Training Registry module in the

NACCRRA Data Suite).

20 20

Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Exhibit A-1 - Performance Measures and Goals

Page 1 of 2
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Exhibit A-1, Amendment #3 - Performance Measures and Goals

3.2.6 The number of child care providers for whom targeted technical

assistance was provided to change/expand their programs in

order to meet unmet child care needs.

10 10

3.2.9.1 The number of early childhood professionals for whom technical

assistance was provided who are awarded one or more

credentials through the NH Early Childhood Professional

Development System.

50 50

3.2.9.2 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance
was provided to improve their business management practices, to

include information on shared services offered through the New
Hampshire State Early Learning Alliance (SELA).

15 15

3.2.9.3 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided who implement the Strengthening Families
approach.

12 12

3.2.9.4 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided who complete a written Emergency Preparedness

plan based on the Incident Command System.

15 15

3.2.9.5 The number of child care program staff for whom technical
assistance was provided who complete an individual professional

development plan designed to increase competency.

100 100

3.2.9.6 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided to implement the New Hampshire Early Learning

Standards.

15 15

3.2.9.7 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided who participate in the NH Quality Rating

Improvement System (QRIS).

25 25

3.2.9.8 The number of child care program staff for whom technical

assistance was provided to create and/or update workforce

records annually in the New Hampshire Professional Registry.

250 250

3.2.9.9 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided around identifying and assisting families

experiencing homelessness.

8 8

3.2.9.10 The number of License Exempt providers for whom technical

assistance was provided around health and safety requirements,

background checks and monitoring requirements.

20 20

3.3.1 The number of child care providers whose first language is not

English for whom technical assistance was provided.

10 10

Child Care Resource and Referral Services

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Exhibit A-1 - Performance Measures and Goals
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Exhibit B-2, Amendment #3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BlddtrrPrognm Name; Sputhern New Hampahlre Sefvlcte. Ir>c.

Budget Request for: Child Care Aware of NH
(Narm ol RfP)

Budget Period: July 1. 2017-June 30. 20ia

1. Total Saiarv/Waoes S  526.182.00

2. Employee Benefits S  194.520.00 $ S  194,520.00 9

3. Consultants . . ' t  40.000.00 $ S  40.000.00 9  10.000.00

4. Equipment!'' ~ v» • $ 9

Rental ' '$ i s 9

Repair and Maintenance $ I $ s

Purchs$eA3eoreciatlon S  3.000.00 $ )  s.ooo.ro 9

5. SuDOttes: $ i s 9

Educatlonal $ $ 9

Ub $ t s $

Pharmacy t % s 9

Medical { $ s 9

omce S  16,500.00 $ $  16,500.00 9  1,500.00

8. Travel ' S  30.000.00 $ $  30,000.00 9

7. Occupancy $  22,000.00 s S  22.000.00 9

8. Current Expenses $ s s 9.

Telephone S  12,751.00 1 S  12,751.00 9

Postage S  2,000.00 $ $  2,000.00 9

Subscrtptions S  4,500.00 $  4,500.00 9

Audit and Legal s s S

Insurance i  1.750.00 $ $  1,750,00 9

Board Expenses $ s s 9

9. Software i  10,000.00 i S  10.000.00 9

10. Marfcetino/Communlcations i  6.000.00 i $  6.000.00 9

11. Staff Educetion end Training S  30.000.00 i S  30.000.00 9  500.00

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements s $ S

13. Other (specific details mandatorvV s i  90.817.00 S  90.817.00 s

i i $ s

$ $ $ s

i i S 9

TOTAL t  899.163.00 $  90.817.00 9  990.000.00 9  12,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NOTE: Minimum match funding per secdon 4.3 of RFP

101%

Revised 01/22/13



Exhibit B-3, Amendment #3

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGETFORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Program Name: Scutharn NewHampsMra Sarvlcta. Inc.

Budgat Ragutat for; Child Cara Awara of NH
(N^meiRFP}

Budgal Parlod: July 1. 2018 • Juna 30. 2019

1. Total SalafyTWaoaa

2. Emtrfovea Banafltt
518.409.00 518.409.00

3." Consultants

4. Eoulpmant

' Rental

Repair and Malntananca

5. Supplies:

PurchasftiDapreclation

Educationat

Lab

Phafmacy

Madlcat

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Leoai

Insurance

Board Expenses

9. Software

10. MarKetlno/Gommunlcatlons

11, Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandalory):

TOTAL

203,375.00

40.000.00

3.000.00

16.500.00

30.000.00

22.000.00

12.730.00

2.000.00

4.500.00

1.750.00

10.000.00

6.000.00

28.919.00

899,183.00 $

90,817.00

203.375.00

40.000.00

3.000.00

16,500.00

30,000.00

22.000.00

12.730.00

2.000.00

4.500.00

1.750.00

10.000.00

6.000.00

28.919.00

90,817.00

90,817.00 S 990,000.00 7

10.000.00

1.500.00

500.00

12.000.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

NOTE: Minimum match fundlrtg par section 4.3 of RFP

10.1%

RevtMd 0irZ2/13
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Lorraine Bartletc

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVjilftER ' ... . .. ,

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03801-3857
'  603-271-4451 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451

FAX: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov

June 13, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children. Youth and
Families to amend an existing agreement with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (Vendor
#91891). 40 Pine Street. Manchester, NH 03103, for the provision of statewide Child Care Resource
and Referral services by adjusting the staffing terms of the contract In order to meet program specific
needs, with no change to the price limitation or the contract end date of June 30. 2017. Governor and
Executive Council approved the original contract on May 27, 2015 (Item #21) and a subsequent
amendment on May 4. 2016 (Item #5A). This is a zero cost amendment. 100% Federal Funds

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2016
and State Fiscal Year 2017 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with the authority to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years, if needed and
justified, without further approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

06-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY ASSURE

Fiscal year Class/Object Class Title Activity Code Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42117709 $990,000

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 42117709 $990,000

Total $1,980,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to adjust staffing" requirements in order to meet program
specific needs. The amendment changes staff work locations and the status of part-time employees
from full-time to part-time employees more accurately reflecting the program service needs. The
original projections for staffing did not align with programmatic needs.

The Contractor's process to find qualified staff resulted in the need to adjust program
operations. Office locations have varied due to the hiring of in-house candidates. A temporary part-
time staff rhember has been hired to fill the Training and TA Specialist position and Is .located in
Nashua. The Infant and Toddler Specialist is currently based out of the vendor main office in Nashua
as opposed to Concord as stated in the contract. Due to the limited requests for t>tlingual services, a
part-time position rather than a full-time is adequate to meet program needs. Finally, office locations
have been adjusted to account for geographical and regional needs for more fiexibilrty in staffing low
referral/clientele areas such as the Western Regional Outreach Office which covers the
Keene/Claremont regions.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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The Child Care Resource and Referral program is statev^ide and assists families in
securing high quality child care for their children; referring families to community suppbrts, as needed;
and assisting child care programs to Improve program quality through a centralized network of
services. Child Care Aware of New Hampshire, a Child Care Resource and Referral Program of
Southern'New Hampshire Sen/ices, provides a variety of information and resources to families which
Include an online provider search, links tp a variety of family and community resources, as well as
information regarding financial assistance. Child care providers are linked to professior^l resources,
technical assistance and training which improves program quality.

The Division for Children, Youth and Families Child Development Bureau administers funds
available through the Federal Office of Child Care Child Care and Development Fund. These funds
support eligible low-income families by providing child care financial assistance and by supporting a
variety of activities that assist them in securing high quality child care. These federal funds also
support continuous quality improvement of early childhood and child care programs through a variety of
trainings which Include Child Care Basics, health & safety trainings, leadership development and other
topics recommended by the CDB, Child Care Licensing or as requested by child care providers.
Targeted technical assistance regarding Emergency Preparedness, Credentialing, and NH Early
Leaming Guidelines/Standards is also provided, which result in positive outcomes for children.

. The ability to consistently collect, utilize and report accurate data Is necessary to meet the
requirements of the Federal O^ice of Child Care and the recently reauthorized Child Care and
Development Block Grant. This is accomplished through this contract by use of the Child Care
Aware® of America Data Suite.

This contract was competitively bid.

The original contract includes the option for the Department to renew the contract for up to
three (3) periods of two (2) years each, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of sen/ices and approval by the Govemor and Executive Council. However, the
Department is not requesting a renewal of contracted services through this amendment.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not approve this request Child Care Resource and
Referral sen/ices may not be available to families and child care programs, which could result in lack of
alignment in child care practices and/or sen/ices including failure to increase access to high quality
child care for low-income families. This would also result in the Department being out of compliance
with the Child Care and Development Fund Federal Plan and the new requirements of the Child Care
and Development Block Grant Act, signed into law on November 19, 2014.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 93.575, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children and Families, Child Care and Development Block Grant

Area Services: Statewide

In the. event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

^ctfully submitted,

lan t
Deputy Commissioner

niee Ni

Approved by;
JefffeV A. Mey

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services Contract

This second (2nd) Amendment to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this 16th day of June. 2016, is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprpfrt corporation with a place of business at
40 Pine Street. Manchester, New Hampshire.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on May.27, 2015 (Item #21) and amended on May 4. 2016 (item #5A). the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in
the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

,  . WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work.

U- schedules and terms and. conditions of the contract; and
S V. WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18. this agreement may be amended

only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment by the Govemor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire; and

WHEREAS the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Scope of Work of the
contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows;

To amend as follows:

1. Delete Exhibit A. Section 4 Staffing, Paragraph 4.1 and replace with the following:

4.1 The Contractor shall employ a minimum of fourteen empioyees to manage and
Implement the required scope of services listed above. All training and TA Team
staff will meet the qualification of the NH Early Childhood Professional
Development System on the Master Professional level and an emphasis will be
placed on ot^taining and/or being qualified for an Infant/Toddler Endorsement.
Staff members shall include, but not be limited to:

2. Delete Exhibit A, Section 4 Staffing, Paragraph 4.1, Subparagraph 4.1.1 and replace
with the following:

4.1.1 Program Manager

3. Delete Exhibit A, Section 4 Staffing, Paragraph 4.1, Subparagraph 4.1.2 and replace
with the following:

4.1.2 Lead Outreach Specialist:

4. Delete Exhibit A. Section 4 Staffing, Paragraph 4.1, Subparagraph 4.1.3 and replace
with the following:

4.1.3 Four (4) Outreach Specialists

5. Delete Exhibit A, Section 4 Staffing. Paragraph 4.1, Subparagraph 4.1.3 and replace
with the following:

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
AmervJment #2

Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

4.1.4 Professional Development Support Coordinator;

6. Delete Exhibit A, Section 4 Staffing. Paragraph 4.1, Subparagraph 4.1.5 and replace
with the following:

4.1.5 Training and Marketing Specialist;

7. Delete Exhibit A. Section 4 Staffing. Paragraph 4.1. Subparagraph 4.1.6 and replace
with the following:

4.1.6 Bllinguai Support Specialist;
8. Delete Exhibit A. Section 4 Staffing. Paragraph 4.1, Subparagraph 4.1.7 and replace

with the following:

4.1.7 Four (4) Training and Technical Assistance Specialists for the provision of TAto
child care programs.

9. Delete Exhibit A, Section 4 Staffing, Paragraph 4.1, Subparagraph 4.1.8 and replace
with the followihg:

4.1.8 Infant and Toddler Specialist;

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment,
the Agreement, and the obligations of the parties there under, shall remain in full force artd
effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Southern New hHampshlre Services, IrK.
Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

This amendment shall be efTective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Marilee Nihan

Deputy Commissioner

Jctjn
D

outhem New Hampshire Services. Inc.

ate / N/men'rtle>:>enn<ui<i. U>2c

Ackrwwiedgement:
state of County of MtlU Qp sU^9.^/ L, . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

<^y-ec- •
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

OORAO.STOHRER
Notary Pubflc-New Hamptfiire

MyOammftiton Expirw Novernbar 16,2020

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form;
substance,'and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Name:

Title: 4

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name: ■

Title:

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Amendment 02
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.j-j.

Jeffrey A. Meyer*
CommiMioner

Lorraine Bartlett

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 3.011^
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

D/VISIOAT FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 0330I-3W7
603-271-44S1 l.80(>.a62434S Ext. 4461

PAX:603-27M729 TDD Acce**: 1-80O-736-2964 www.dhbt.Dh.gov

March 17. 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families to amend an existing agreement with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (Vendor #
91891), 40 Pine Street, Manchester NH 03103, for the provision of statewide Child Care Resource and
Referral services by adjusting certain budget line items for State Fiscal Year 2016 in order to meet
specific needs. Nvith no change to the price limitation or the contract end date of June 30, 2017.
Governor and Executive Council approved the original contract on May 27, 2015 (Item #21). This is a
zero cost amendment.

Funds to support this request are available in the foltowing account in State Fiscal Years 2016
and 2017 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets,
with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, if needed and justified, without
further approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLP-QUALITY ASSURE

Fiscal year Class/Object Class Title Actlvitv Code Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117709 $990,000

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117709 $990,000

Total $1,980,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to allow the vendor to adjust budget line items in order to meet
contract requirements. The original budget was constructed conservatively for the potential of being
fully staffed upon the contract effective date. The vendor's hiring process to find qualified staff resulted
In the vendor's need to adjust program operations. The change in operations has resulted in a request
from the vendor to adjust several of the budget lir>e items in order to properly meet contract
requirements.
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Salaries and benefits will be decreased by $79,345 due to unexpected staffing changes. The
budget was designed with the expectation of being fully staffed. However, it is taking longer than
expected to fill vacant positions. Occupancy will be decreased by $1,186 as It took three months to
identify and occupy all regional office spaces. Purchase and depreciation will increase by $11,600
since desktop computers will be replaced with the purchase of eight Wi-Fi capable tablets which will
provide tirhely services in all regions. Travel costs have Increased by $10,000 due to the staff
providing services in areas that were not yet staffed. Telephone will Increase by $3,800 due to the
need to purchase 'hot spots' which will allow them to access information and resources in order to
enhance the delivery of services provided in areas with poor Wi-Fi signal. Liability Insurance has
increased by $1,186, the actual cost was higher than anticipated. Software will increase by $23,000
through the purchase custom enhancements to the NH Professional Registry which will streamline
tasks and will allow staff to provide more direct services. Marketing will increase by $4,000 to support
the cost of preprinted referral packets and marketing materials which will free up staff and lower the
cost of printing supplies. Indirect costs will increase by $14,945 since the rate is negotiated annually at
a rate of less than 10.1% for expenses occurring during the contract period.

The Child Care Resource and Referral program is statewide and assists farhilies in securing
high quality child care for their children; referring families to community supports, as needed; and
assisting child care programs to improve program quality through a web-bas^ rretwork of services.
ChildCare Aware of New Hampshire provides a variety of information and resources to families which
include an online provider search, links to a variety of family and community resources, as well as
information regarding financial assistance. Child, care service providers are linked to professional
resources, technical assistance and the training academy which improves program quality.

The Division for Children, Youth and Families Child Development Bureau administers funds
available through the Federal Office of Child Care Child Care and Development Fund. These funds
support eligible low-income families-by providing child care financial assistance and by supporting a
variety of activities that assist them in securing high quality child care. These federal funds also
support continuous quality improvement of early childhood and child care programs through a variety of
trainings which include Child Care Licensing Orientation, Medication administration and On-line Early
Childhood Education courses. Targeted technical assistance regarding Emergency Preparedness,
Credentialing, arxl NH Early Learning Guidelines/Standards Is also provided, which result in positive
outcomes for children.

f

The ability to consistently collect, utilize and report accurate data is necessary to meet the
requirements of the Federal Office of Child Care and the recently reauthorized Child Care and
Development Block Grant. This is accomplished through this contract by use of the Child Care
Aware® of America data suite.

This contract.was competitively bid.

The attached contract includes the option for the Department to renew the contract for up to
three (3) periods of two (2) years each, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request Child Care Resource and
Referral services will not be available to families and child care programs, which could result in lack of
alignment in child care practices and/or services including failure to increase access to high quality
child care for low-income families. This would also result in DCYF being out of compliance with the
Child Care and Development Fund Federal Plan and the new requirements of the Child Care and
Development Block Grant Act, signed into law on November 19, 2014.

J
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Source of Funds; 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistar^e
(CFDA) U 93.575, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Children and Families, Child Care and Development Block Grant

Area Services: Statewide

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

wlary An
Associal

uooney

Commissi

ey

Approved by:
Meye

commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Sef\>ices' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 01 to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services Contract

This first (1") Amendment to the Child Care Resource and Referral Services contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1') dated this 16th day of February, 2016, Is by and
between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporaticn with a place of business at
40 Pine Street, Manchester, New Hampshire.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on May 27, 2015 (Item #21). the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment ischedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 this agreement may be amended
only by an instrument in writing signed by the parlies hereto and only after approval of such
amendment by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire; and

WHEREAS the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend Exhibit B and Exhibit B-1,
Budget Period 7/1/2015 - 6/30/2016 of the contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows;

To amend as follows:

1. Replace Exhibit B-1, Budget Period 7/1/2015 - 6/30/2016 with:

Exhibit B-1. Amendment #1

2. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Paragraph 2.2 to read:

2.2. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown
In Exhibit B-1. Amendment #1 and Exhibit B-1. Budget Period: July 1, 2016-June
30.2017.

3. Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, add:

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the P-37, an amendment limited to the
adjustment of amounts between budget line items and/or State Fiscal Years,
related Items, and amendment of related budget exhibits, can be n^e by written
agreement of both parlies and does not require additional approval of the
Govermr and Exe<^(ve Council.

Except^as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditiorts of this Amendment,
the Agreement, and the obligations of the parties there under, shall remain in full force and
effect in accordance with the terms ar>d conditions set forth herein.

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Amendment 01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Q

Acknowledgement;

2oI(,

Mar^ Ann Ciohey
Associa ommissioner

shire Services, Inc.outhern New Ha

hi
cu

me/Tftle

Acknowledgement: / i x — /
State of County of ha on /i the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or safisfadorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that si/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

OEBRAO.STOHRS)
Notary PuMo • New HimpiMrB

My OomnlHloft Expfew Nownte tei 2020

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Amendment 01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Child Care Resource and Referral Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Ml

Title:

Date

t hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved oy the Governor and Executive
Council of the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southern New Hafnpshire Services, inc.
Amendment #1
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Niebolu A. Toumpts
CommiMioocr

Lorrftioe Bartlett

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

.DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMIUES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 0S301-38S7
603-271-4451 l-800'8S2-3345 Ext. 4451

PAX: G03-271-4729 TOD Accom: 1-800-755-2964 www.dbbi.oh.coe

April 17. 2015

Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

G&C Approved

Dtto

Item

REQUESTED ACTION

U

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Children. Youth and
Families to enter into an agreement vrith Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. (Vendor # 91891) for
the provision of statewide Child Care Resource and Referral services in an amount not to exce^
$1,980,000. effective July 1. 2015, or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, wWchever is
later, through June .30, 2017. 100 % Federal Funds

Funds to support this request are antidpated to be available in the following account in State
Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, if needed and
justified, without further approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-421110-29780000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF hFai th AND ETUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, CHILD CARE DVLF-QUALITY
ASSURE

Fiscal year Class/Object Class Title Activity
Number

Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117709 $990,000
2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 42117709 $990,000

ToUl $1,980,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for the provision of a statewide Child Care Resource and
Referral program that will: assist families in securing high quality child care for their children; refer
families to community supports, as needed; and assist child care programs to Improve program quality
by providing a centralized network of services for families in need of child care and community
services, and for child care service providers.

,  The Division for Children. Youth and Families Child Development Bureau administers funds
available through the Federal Office of Child Care Child Care and Developrnent Fund. These funds
support eligible low-Income families by providing child care financial assistance and by supporting a
variety of activities that assist them in securing high quality child care. These federal funds also
support continuous quality Improvement of earty childhood and child care programs through the
provision of training and targeted technical assistance to program staff, which results in positive
outcomes for children.
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The Contractor will ensure that high quality, culturally competent Child Care Resource and
Referral services are known and accessible to the widest possible number of families, providers,
businesses and community members statewide. The Contractor will ensure consistency in data
collection and reporting of services in the National Association of Child Care Resource and Referral
Agencies (now known as Child Care Aware® of America) Data Suite. This statewide database, gives
families the opportunity to be supported by Child Care Resource and Referral staff immediately upon
contact, via telephone, in-person. or online.

The Contractor will coordinate, market, and provide training opportunities for child care program
staff, set up of training sites and coordinate participant registration, trainee data and training materials,
and the credentialing of-participants.
.  . • . r ^ '
-  ' TheContractoi^wilt provide technical assistance to child care providers to improve quality and
increase access of high quality child care to families. Technical assistance activities include but are not
limited to: assisting with crertentialing of the child care workforce through the NH £ar1y Childhood
Professior>al~-Development^'$ystem; providing training and technical assistance in busirtess
managerhent practices for child care programs; and providing technical assistance to child care
programs to support therh to implement the Strengthening Families approach.

The Contractor will also assist child care programs with completing a written emergency
preparedness plan based on the Incident Command System and with creating individual professional
development plans designed to increase teacher competency, especially in the realm of the NH Early
Learning Standards.

The ability to consistently collect, utilize and report accurate data is necessary to meet the
requirements of the Federal Office of Child Care and the recently reauthorized Child Care
Development Block Grant. This Is accomplished through this contract by use of the Child Care
Aware® of America database.

This contract was competitively bid. The Department published a Request for Proposals on
December 1. 2014 to solicit proposals from verKfors for the provision of statewide Child Care Resource
and Referral services under one contract. The Request for Proposals was published on the
Department's website with a closing date of January 16. 2015. The Department received three (3)
proposals, which were evaluated by managers and program specialists. Southern New Hampshire
Services was selected. The bid summary sheet Is attached.

The attached contract includes the option for the Department to renew the contract for up to
three (3) periods of two (2) years each, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
pcrformonee ef aerviees and approval by the Ouvoiiiui and ExeLUlive CuuiiUt.

The selected Contractor will provide statewide Child Care Resource and Referral program
services across all Division of Client Services District Office catchment areas In order to: reduce
administrative program costs; increase funding for training and targeted technical assistance activities
that will increase child care program quality; and increase access to high quality child care programs
for children of low-income families.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request Child Care Resource and
Referral services will not be available to farnilies and child care programs, which could result in lack of
alignment in child care practices and/or services including failure to increase access to high quality
child care for low-income families. This would also result in DCYF being out of compliance with the
Child Care and Development Futxl Federal Plan and the new requirements of the Child Care
Development Block Grant Act, signed into law on November 19, 2014.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 93.575, Federal Agency Department of Health aixl Human Services, Administration for
Children eirxl Families, Child Care and Development Block Grant

Area Services: Statewide

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Ma

Ass

ooney

Commissioner

Approved by:[
llcholas A. Tobmpas
Commissioner

The Dtpartment of Health and Human SerHcts' Mission is (ojoin communities and families
in providing opportunities for citians to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Statewide Child Care Resource and Referral

Services
16-OHHS-OHS-OCYF-01

RPP Name RFP Number Reviewer Names

Dague Clark (Cost) Administrator
'Mli.liiayor

Bidder Name
Pass/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

Ciaudette Matlory (Cost) Program
Specialist II. Thayer

^ Easter Seals, NH 390 287

- Or. Ellen Wheatley (Tech), cost

' observer no>vote, DIr Res & inst

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center,
Inc. (SERESC). 390 238

- KrisUn Booth (Tech) Program
' Specialist IV Thayer

Southern NH Services (SNHS) 390 355

Jessica Sugrue (Tech) Program
Specialist III Thayer

g Susan Foley (Tech) Program
' Specialist IVThayer



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject; Child Care Resource and Referral Services

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and (he Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agcocy Name

NH Department of Healdi and Human Services
Division forCtu'ldren. Youth and Families

1.2 State Ageoey Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301.
U CoatractorNamc

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

1.4 Coelracter Address

40 Pine Street

Manchester, NH 03103

1.5 Cootractor Phooe

Number

603-668-8010

1.6, AccoDBt Nomber

05-095-42-42II 10.29780000

1.7 ComplctioQ Date

June 30, 2017

1.8 Price Llfflitstloo

SI,980,000

1.9 Cootractlog Officer for State Agency

Eric Borrin, Director

1.10 State Agency Telepboae Number

603-271-9558

1.11 ^^otract^r Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Gale F. Hennessy, Executive Director

1.13 ̂ A^owledgement: SlatiofW^. County of !

On before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledgied that &/he executed this document in the capacity iodkaied in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of tbc Peace

[SealJ

nWa P. BUKSON, Notety Pubic
My OommMon Ei9ire» May 23,2019

1.I3J Name aod Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Oiftoe P- eNKsad, efBLtmJe

1.14 State SleDBtcncy 1.15 Name

M
SignatoryIde ofand Agen

'jcaof

1.16 . Approval b£jheN.H. Department of Administration, Division oTPersoDDcl fi/epp/icaMc)

By: Director, On:

pproval by tb^^ttorocy General (Form. Substaoce aod Execution)

necutive Council |1.18 Approval by the G<p/mor and executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identi fied in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is irrcofporaled herein by reference
(^rviccs").

3. EFFECTIVE DATiyCOMPLETlON OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govmior and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
AgreenKnt,'and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and

Executive Council approve this Agreement ("EfTeciiye Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EOective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the EiTective Date shall be perlbrmed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the Slate shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
^xcified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this AgrMment to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess ofsuch available appn^riated
funds. In the event of a reduction or tamination of

apprq)riat^ funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the ri^t to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination, the State
shall not be required to transfer fimds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLUNCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or munkipai authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,'
including, but not limited to, civil rights ar)d equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with ̂ 1
applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, (he Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
haridicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
anirmatjve action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 1 f this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 C'Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Coniraclor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions ofthis Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all'
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing during the term of

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc Identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporat^'herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
oqKnses, of whatever nature incurred by (he Contractor in the
perfonnahce hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5 J The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7>c .or.any other provision of taw.

this Agreement, and for a period ofsix (6) months afla the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person. Arm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance ofthis
AgreemenL This provision shall survive termination ofthis
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer spcciCed in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Ofllcer's decision shall be final for (he Slate. .

Page2or4
Conlractor Inslials:

Dtter



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
Schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term orcortdition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default artd requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) d^ afW giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 ̂ ve the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspendingall payments to be m^e under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which vtould otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2J set off against any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the A^eement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTUUTY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infonnation and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, irKluding, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, .computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters; memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
93 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91*A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written i|^roval.ofthe State.

10. TERMINATION, in the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of (he
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
tennination. a report (Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services periformed. and the contract price earned, to
and irKluding the dale of termination. The form, subject
maner, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, artd is ndther an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, en^loyees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provi^d by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not'assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the Nil. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be suboontracted by-the Contractor without the
prior written consent ofthe Stale.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
enr^)k>yees, from and against any and all losses suffoxd by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the'State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. Thb covenant io paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assigTKC to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 pa
occurrence; and

14.13 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80H of the whole replacement value ofthe property.
143 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsemcnls approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the Nil. Dqianment of
Insurance, and Issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or ha successor, a cert)ficatefs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this AgrcemenL
Contractor shall also fiimish to the Contracting Offica
identified In block 1.9, or his or ha successor, ccnlficatefs) of
insurance for all renewalfs) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifreen (1S) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any rene%^ thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated hacin reference.l^h
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ceitincate(s) of insurance shall conUin a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation.or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt fiom, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter.281-A
("Workera* Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of NH. RSA chapter 28]-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any si^xr^tnctor or assignee to secure
and maintain, peyment of Workers* Compensation in -
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, pmfof Workers' Compensation in the manner
described in Nil. RSA ch^>ter 281*A and any applicable
renew8l(s) thereof, which shall be attached artd are
incorporated herein by reference. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or en^loyee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensatioa laws in coiutection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failura by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afferany Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to eitforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereofupon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICED Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given m blocks l.i ana i.a.nerem.

18. amendment. This Agreement may be amended,.
waived or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only alter approval of such

. amendment, waiver or discharge by the Oovemor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the beiwfit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do nql intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SE VERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of .
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undentandings relating hereto.

Page 4 or4
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Scope of Sarvlces

1. Provisions Applicable to All 8ervlc«a

1.1. The Contrador agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Ser\nc8 priorities

and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.2. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or
rehatxlitation. Appropriate records shall be mantained by the Contractor to
document actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of

funds.

2. Senrlcet to B# Provldod...

2.1. The Contractor will promote and market high quality, culturally competent, Child Care
Resource & Referral (CCR&R) services statewide to families, providers, businesses

and community members. The Contractor will:

2.1.1. Annually update marketing materials using Child Care Aware® of America's

(formerly NACCRRA) best practices. Marketing materials will include but not
be limited to:

2.1.1.1. Brochures.

2.1.1.2. Flyers.

2.1.1.3. Display posters.

2.1.1.4. Pens.

2.1.1.5. Magnets, and

2.1.1.6. Other marketing tools.

2.1.1.7. Materials will be updated in both English and Spanish and at
minimum, will contain:

2.1.1.8. Program name;

2.1.1.9. Toll free phone number and

2.1.1.10. Website.

2.1.1.11. The update will occur in May of each year.

2.1.2. Create a brand/logo for CCR&R that reflects a statewide approach to CCR&R
senrices and programming.

liliateSouthern New Hempshire Services. Inc. Exhibit A Coniracfor initials.
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2.1.2.1. The existing brand, Child Care Aware® of New Hampshire, wifl be

utilized If permission Is granted from the current organization, to
minimize cost associated with creating and marketing a new
brand/logo.

2.1.2.2. Brand/Logo should be completed by September 2015.

2.1.3. The Contractor Mil create a comprehensive website that is easily assessable,
up-to-date and user-friendly.

2.1.3.1. This site will have tabs or 'buttons' specifically for families, providers
and the community. Under each tab, a list of infonnative and related

resources and links will be provided. A tab for businesses vrill also be
added to promote program services to local and state businesses.
Tabs specific to Families and Providers will be created as outlined
below:

2.1.3.1.1. Families: This tab will be on the main page of the website and will
give Families the option of selecting a Child Care Search Online,
Child Care Licensing Information, Quality Matters (to include what

quality is, questions to consider when selecting a program, quality
indicators and deslgnatioris of quality). Financial Assistance (how
to apply for child care scholarship, including link to NH Easy, an

online application link for.assistance). .ComplaintPolicies, Family
Resources, and Child Care Chat Feature.

2.1.3.1.2. Providers: This tab mII be on themain page of the website and
will give Providers the option of searching for Training. Technical
Assistance. Child Care Training Academy (an online customizable
training component). NH Professional Registry, Provider

Resources (to include current OHMS Contractors and

Stakeholders, etc.) and Child Care Chat Feature and/or interactive

group chat with log-in.

2.1.3.2. This site will be reflective of New Hampshire and will have:

2.1.3.2.1. Photos and videos specifically to provide a visual of CCR&R

services throughout the state. /

2.1.3.2.2. There will be photos of CCR&R Staff under an "About Us" tab to

'  give the site a friendly and usable feel for a statewide audience of
CCR&R Program users.

2.1.3.2.3. The NH Professional Reglstry,( with the CDS consent), will be
housed on this site for quick access as will the Online Referral

Module for Families seeking child (^re referrals,

2.1.3.2.4. AnhktoEventbritetrainirigsand-f^ceboolc^^^fSi^

Southtfn New Hampshire Services. Inc. ExhUiii A Contractor InitbU

Page 2 of 16



N«w Hampthirt Dapsrtmant of HMtth and Human 8«rvlc««
CMkf Cart Raaburco and Rafarral SarvlcM

ExMbttA
o

2.1.3.2.5. Hot Topics will be incorporated on the horne page of the website
to list the rnost current informalion and resources available to

families and providers.

' 2.1.3.2.6. A translator function will be available on this site to translate

information into any language.

2.1.4. The Contractor will disseminate marketing materials and information, to
promote public awarer)ess. through various means such as:

2.1.4.1. Local hospitals,

2.1.4.2. Pediatrician and general practitioner offices,

2.1.4.3. Earty intervention programs,

2.1.4.4. Churches.

2.1.4.5. Local retailers,

2.1.4.6. Realtors,

2.1.4.7. Libraries.

2.1.4.8. Grocery stores,

2.1.4.9. Restaurants,

2.1.4.10. DHHS district offices.

2.1.4.11. NHEP offices and partner meetings,

2.1.4.12. Health clubs,

2.1.4.13. Malls,

2.1.4.14. Community boards,

2.1.4.15. School districts and local community colleges.

2.1.4.16. Through community events.

2.1.4.17. Family resource centers,

2.1.4.18. Community action agencies,

2.1.4.19. WIC,

2.1.4.20. 211.

2.1.4.21. Fuel assistance offices.

2.1.4.22. Child health support services and workplace success programs.

2.2. The Contractor will provide statewide child care resource and referral services to
families who may or may not be receiving assistance or services from the New
Hampshire Employment Program (NHEP) or the Department. The Contractor will:

Southern New Hampshire Services, loc. Exhibit A Conliactor Initlats i* --
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2.2.1. Maintain regular business hours from 8:30 a.m. -4:30 p.m., Monday through

Friday In the main office (Southern/Manchester Regional/Main Office) and in
each of the four regional offices (Concord/Laconia Regional Outreach Office.
Beriin/Conway/Littleton Regional Outreach Office, Claremont/Keene
Outreach Regional Office. Rochester/Seacoast Regional Outreach Office).

2.2.2. Offer appointments for services outside of the regular business hours,

specified in section 2.2.1., by request through the program's website.

2.2.3. Conduct referrals via phone, in-person, online or at NHEP orientations.

2.2.4. Maintain a strong woddng relationship with NHEP and DHHS staff in each

District Office.

2.2.4.1. The Contractor win participate in NHEP orientations to inform

participants with information about child care, what assistance may be
available to meet their needs and information regarding child care
licensing and quality indicators to look for when selecting a child care
program for their child(ren).

2.3. The Contractor will follow up whh clients two to three weeks after an initial referral is
taken using a developed evaluation and follow up process using various methods
such as:

2.3.1. Phone contact (in English & Spanish).

2.3.2. A paper survey (Included In each referral packet);

2.3.3. Through'Survey Monkey* (a web-t)ased survey link), or

2.3.4. Mailing a'Family Satisfaction Survey*.

2.4. The Contractor will enter all Information concerning follow up attempts and

completed surveys into the Child Care Aware® of America NACCRRA Data Suite

database and provide a quarterly report to the Program Specialist monitoring the
contract.

2.5. The Contractor will collaborate with DHHS contractors and other stakeholders to

maximize the cost benefit of providing statewide services to ̂ milies and child care
programs. The Contractor will:

2.5.1. Provide service In multiple regions within the state in a consistent and

streamlined approach; >

2.5.2. Place emphasis on proper. reliable and valid data collection and reporting;

2.5.3. Utilize a "6o-to-Meeting' format, conference calling ot other technological
services as an alternative means to still engage with client personally with
minimizing the expenses associated with travel and time providing direct in-
person services;

Southern N«w Hampirtk* Servie«i. Inc. Exnibil A Contractof Inilials
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2.5.4. Work with CCLU to maintain and update, accurate and complete

NACCRRAware database of child care programs;

2.5.5. Collaborate with other State of NH contractors to promote each other's

services and to assist In Increasing awareness of contracted services; and

2.5.6. CCR&R Outreach Specialists work with COB Specialists on ensuring that the
data in each of their respective databases is accurate in terms of which
providers are enrolled in and accepting child care scholarships. .

2.6. The Contractor will maintain current relationships/coltat)Oratlons with other agencies

ar>d .organizations to maximize child care resource services. These include but are

not limited to:

2.6.1. New Hampshire Employment Program;

2.6.2. Child Development Bureau;

2.6.3. Child Care Licensing Unit;

2.6.4. Child Care Aware of New Hampshire;

2.6.5. Early Head Start and Head Start Programs;

2.6.6. Alliance of Better ChiWcare (ABC);

2.6.7. Arts Alliance of New Hampshire;

2.6.6. Carroll County Round Table;

2.6.9. City of Derry Public Health Department;

2.6.10. Early Learning New Hanpshire (ELNH);

2.6.11. New Hampshire Association for the Education of Young Children (NHAEYC);

2.6.12. New Hampshire Children's Trust;

2.6.13. Seacoast Early Learning Alliance (SELA);

2.6.14. SPARK NH;

2.6.15. Watch Me Grow NH;

2.6.16. Comprehensive Resource for Out-of-School Staff NH;

2.6.17. Early Education and Interventbn Network;

2.6.18. Family Resource Centers;

2.6.19. Granite State Collect;

2.6.20. Dr. Michael Kallnowski; and

2.6.21. Southeaster Regional Education Service Center Inc.

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. Exhibit A Coniractor Initials.

PageSofie Dale



Nmr Hampihlr* Dvpartm^nt of HnlOi and Human Sarvlcoa
CMld Cara Raaourco and Rofarral Sarvtcaa

ExMbKA

2.7. The Contractor will provide web-based services for families and child care providers
by using NACCRRAware Suite of Data Services (NDS) to access and maintain the

database for the state. NDS consists of the following;

2.7.1. NACCRRAware (NW) • generates child care referrals for farnlies and reports.
NW will manage client, provider and community data.

2.7.2. Online Referral Module (CRM) • is an online service that allows CCR&R to
have the ability and flexibility to configure fields for families to access online

referrals. This module includes an option to translate online referrals into
other languages, if needed.

2.7.3. Online Provider Services (OPS) - is an online service that will give programs
the ability to review and update their program infomiation into

NACCRRAware. This application also allows CCR&R to upload files, forms,
training information, emergency preparedness guides and other pertinent

Information for providers to access easily online.

2.7.4. Training Tracking and Technical Assistance Management or TTAM - consists

of various components. Training Tracking (TT) will manage, track and report

tralnir)gs for child.care providers. The Training Portal, which is for

Trainers/Trainees, provides web based access for Trainer and Trainee

records. The Online Training Calendar (OTC) via TTAM, will provide CCR&R
with the ability to create local, regiondl and statewide training calendars and

allow training participants to register online for these training opportunities.

Technicdt Assistance Management (TA) is the module used to manage, track
and report on technical assistance provided to child care programs. Training
Registry (TR) will track the demographics, education, employment
background and training history of child care providers and aoss sector
professionals and will also identity and record their advancement in the fteld.

2.7.5. Child Care Training Academy is a web-based platform that allows providers
to access online training for a fee. The academy offers a variety of tralnlno
and also gives providers the ability to customize their training. Child Care
Aware of America® is currently working on developing a data Integration
between Child Care Aware Training Academy and the TT Datasets. This
would then mean that trainees participating in a Child Care Training Academy

would be able to have information regarding their partictpatlon in their

Registry Record through the NH Professional Registry.

2.7.6. Child Care Online (CCO) - will give providers the ability to create a "virtual'
tour of their child care program with pictures and descriptions to help them
market their program to families. This feature is not currently used by
CCR&R, however, If needed CCR&R will begin utilizing this feature to assist
programs In their marketing efforts.

2.7.7. Quality Indicators (Ql) - will provide an easy to under8tar>d program profile to

families that highlights a program's quality indicators or areas of qua^[ty^^is|ua^tty^^i
Southern New Hampshire Services. IrK. Exhibit A Conpacior Initials 0^^
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feature is relatively new to NDS. CCR&R will work with the CDS on utilizing
this feature to help the slate meet the federal plan requirements and to help

promote and market QRIS (Quality Rating Improvement System).

2.8. The Contractor will ensure that data collection and reports are accurate and

consistent statewide.

2.8.1. Actively assist in maintaining the NACCRRA Data Suite (NDS) database to
house statewide data with accurate and current information regarding child
care needs and child care program information, including Integration with all

modules of the data suite as mentioned in 2.6.1 through 2.6.7.

2.8.2. The SNHS program manager will assist In populating the database data fields

and updating them regularly and appropriately.

2.8.3. Activity conducted between CCR&R staff and child care programs will be

documented in the database.

2.8.4. SNHS CCR&R will conduct a minimum of five updates to the NACCRRA

Data Suite (NDS) on an annual basis which include but are not limited to;

2.8.4.1.^ Conducting a full and partial update to the provider section of the

database;

2.8.4.2. An annual update and review of the community section

2.8.4-3. An annual update and review of client records

2.8.4.4. Deletion of duplicate records; and

2.8.4.5. Updating providers accepting Preventive and Protective Care arid

changing their licensing status and/orquality designation.

2.9. The Contractor will ensure the database is updated with current Information on a

regular basis and will delete any duplicate or unnecessary data.

.  2.9.1. Protocol for deletion of cOent, provider and community records follows. The
Contractor will delete:

2.9.1.1. Inactive.clients with no action log history within the past two years;

2.9.1.2. Duplicate client records, all relevant history v^'ll be kept or moved to

the saved account;

2.9.1.3. Online Referral Module (CRM) dients with rK> referral history within

.the last two years;

2.9.1.4. Child care programs/providers with no activity within a calendar year;

2.9.1.5. Duplicate community records;

2.9.1.6. Community records not actively used by CCR&R staff within a
calendar year.

2.9.2. Update current information:

Southem New HampsAu'e Services. Inc. EihioiiA Contrtclor Irtitials.
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2.9.2.1. Client Section:

2.9.2.1.1. Entering client information for referrals will be done within one

business day;

2.9.2.1.2. Deleting duplication of records will be done in July/August of each
year;

2.9.2.1.3. Administration and conftguration of the Client Section data fields
will t>e done as needed with the DHHS Child Development Bureau

(COB).

2.9.2.2. Provider Section:

2.9.2.2.1. Enterhg new providers in the database wtien received ̂ hin five
business days of receiving the information;

2.9.2.2.2. Updating provider information in database will done in March and

November;

2.9.2.2.3. inactive records will be deleted in December/January of each

year;

2.9.2.2.4. Updating Preventive and Protective Care and r>ew/closed
programs wHhin ftve business days of receiving lists from DHHS
Child Development Bureau (CDS) and/or Child Care Licensing
Unit (CCLU).

2.9.2.3. Community Section:

2.9.2.3.1. Adding Community Records will be done within frve business days
of receiving the information;

' 2.9.2.3.2. Reviewing and updating community section will be done in
December and January of each yean

2.9.2.3.3. Deleting community records will be done In Deceml>er/January of
each year.

2.9.2.4. Online Provider Services (OPS):

2.9.2.4.1. Giving providers access will be done as needed upon request;

2.9.2.4.2. Monitoring OPS will be done on a weekly basis.

2.9.2.5. Online Referral Module (ORM):

2.9.2.5.1. Administration and configuration as needed based on Child
Development Bureau (CDB) will be done weekly.

2.9.2.6. Child Care Online (CCO):

2.9.2.5.1. Will be available upon request based on Child Development
Bureau (DCS) needs.

Soutttem New Hampthire Seivtces. Inc. EzNNi A ContracKx inUiab
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2.9.2.7. Training and Technical Assistance management Module (TTAM):

2.9.2.7.1. Training and Tracking (TT):

2.9.2.7.2. Entering training, trainers, host sites (facilities), training
competency data wiH be done on a monthly basis;

2.9.2.7.3. Enrolling trainees and entering information upon completion of
training w'lthin five business days;

2.9.2.7.4. Mergir>9 duplicate registry user accounts win be done as needed;

2.9.2.7.5. Training reporting will be done on a monthly basis;

2.9.2.7.6. Final competency count will be updated weekly or as requested;
and

2.9.2.7.7. TT Training for CCR&R staff will be done upon hire, as needed.

2.9.2.7.8. Technical Assistance (TA) Management:

2.9.2.7.8.1. Entering TA initiatives will be done as needed;

2.9.2.7.8.2. Entering TA project, episode will be done upon completion of
the project or episode;

2.9.2.7:8.3. Assessing and Reporting on TA will tDe done on a quarterly

basis; and

2.9.2.7.8.4. TA Training for CCR&R staff will be done upon hire, as

needed.

2.9.2.8. Quality Indicators (01):

2.9.2.8!l. Will be available upon request based on Child Development
Bureau (DCS) needs.

2.10. The Contractor will provide statewide child care resource, referral, recruitment, and
educational training and targeted technical assistance services to licensed center
and family based as welt as license exempt child care providers. The Contractor wilt:

2.10.1.. • Offer training in five regions throughout the state.

2.10.2. Offer a variety of training formats, with evening trainings, conferences, full-
day events and institutes.

2.10.3. Expand the use of standard host sites in each region for trainings to er^ufe
participant comfort and to maximize adult learning as well as minimize cost.

2.10.4. Provide a minimum total of 225 training opportunities. 45 of which will be
Child Care Basic trainings, 60 will consist of health and safety training
opportunities, and 120 will be as recommended by the COB, Child Care
Licensing, or the Spark NH Workforce and Professional Development

Committee, and/or as requested by child care providers.
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2.10.5. Seek opportunities to provide training and targeted TA to 25 programs and

providers who are looking to expand or change their programs to meet the

needs of families, such as providing infant/toddler care and/or adjusting their
hours to accommodate evening and weekend care,

2.10.6. Provide outreach within the community to market CCR&R services and to
attract indivlduals looking to provide child care within (heir home as a family

child care business as pad of CCR&R recruitment effort.

2.11. The Contractor will provide targeted technical assistance to providers to fill urvnet
child care needs throughout the state, including txJt not limited to:

2.11.1. Infant care.

2.11.2. Special needs care, and

2.11.3. Child care during non-traditional hours.

2.12. The Contractor will provide Child Care Basics Training and other workshops on a
statewide level which rhust include health and safety training.

2.12.1. The Contractor will provide "Caring for Our Children: Health. Safety, Nutrition

and Wellness' Conferences. These pre-service training topics will be based
on Caring for Our children Health and Safety Standards and will Include but

not be limited to:

2.12.1.1. Preventing Spread of Infectious Disease,

2.12.1.2. Prevention of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS).

2.12.1.3. Medication Administration,

2.12.1.4. Prevention of and Response to Emergencies Due to Food and
Allergic Reactions,

2.12.1.5. Building and Physical Premises Safety.

9 1 7 1 R Preupntirvi nf Pahy gynrTrnma

2.12.1.7. Emergency Preparedness,

2.12.1.6. the Handling and Storage of Hazardous Materials,

2.12.1.9. Transportation and Child Passer>ger Safety, and

2.12.1.10. Child Abuse and Neglect: Including Recognition and Mandatory
Reporting.

2.12.2. A training track during this conference will be offered in Spanish when the
conference is held In the Southern/Manchester region and/or translation
services will be provided, based on need.

2.13. The Contractor will market and facilitate training opportunities to ensure child care

program staff, statewide, will have the opportunity to meet Child Care Licensing and
Federal Office of Child Care training requirements.

Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials ifA
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2.13.1. Specrftc marketing methods that will be used to market and promote
awareness of CCR&R professional development training for child care

programs and providers will Include:

2.13.1.1. Email distribution lists;

2.13.1.2. Website/s;

2.13.1.3. Marketing materials;

2.13.1.4. Social media;

2.13.1.5. Eventbrrte,

2.13.1.6. New Hampshire Professional Registry,

2.13.1.7. Spark NH PORTAL (Professional Opportunities. Resources. Trainings
and Links).

2.13.1.6. Directors and Leadership Collaborations;

2.13.1.9. Dual Language Learners;

2.13.1.10. Child Care Resource and Referral Training and Marketing Specialist;

2.13.1.11. Training Modalities;

2.13.1.11.1. Instructor-led training

2.13.1.11.2. E-leamIng;

2.13.1.11.3. Webinar capability;

2.13.1.11.4. Links and Resources;

2.13.1.11.5. Training collaborations and partnerships; and

2.13.1.11.6. Host sites.

2.13.2. Initial marketing will be done in September of each year when the annual
training calendar is completed and disseminated.

2.13.2.1. This calendar will be mailed to all licens^ programs and license
exempt programs in the NDS database.

2.13.2.2. Dissemination through Constant Contact will also take place linking
programs and individuals to the posting of this calendar on the
website.

2.13.2.3. Constant Contact v^ll be used on a monthly basis to remind providers
that the monthly training registration is open and what trainings are
available to register for.

2.13.2.3.1. This will be done through the "Monthly Minutes",

Southem New Hampshire S«fvic«s. Inc. EihibilA Contractor IrvtitiattiS
Page 11 of 16 Date
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2.13.2.3.2. Weekly updates through the *At-A-GIance" editions will also
consist of training reminders for trainings coming up and for
trainings that are still available for registration,

2.13.2.4. Facebook will also be used as a means to market training
opporlunlties and reminder,

2.13.2.5. The "Monthly Minutes' are mailed out to programs without Internet
capatMlities to pfomote equal access of training opportunities.

2.13.2.6. The Annual Training Calendar wlli be housed for view and will be

available to download on the CCR&R website and will be referenced

in marketing materials and Constant Contact disseminations.

2.13:2.7. Trainings will be listed for registration purposes in the NH Professional
Registry. The only exception to this will be for trainings that are slid
being offered through Eventbrite for payment purposes.

2.13.2.7.1. Eventbrite trainings will be housed in the registry as private and
paid attendees will be enrolled by the Professional Development
Support Coordinator and the Training and Marketing Specialist.

2.13.2.8. A list of web-based training resources specifically tied to the Federal
Office of Child Care training requirements will be available for

program and provider use.

2.13.2.8.1. This list will Include but not be limited to references and links to :

2.13.2.8.1.1. American Heart Association,

2.13.2.8.1.2. American Red Cross,

2.13.2.8.1.3. CenterforD'seaseControl,

2.13.2.8.1.4. Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA),

2.13.2.8.1.5. Healthy Child Care America.

2.13.2.8.1.6. National Resource Center for Health and Safety in Child Care
and Earfy Education, and

2.13.2.8.1.7. Zero to Three.

2.14. The Contractor will provide technical assistance (TA) services to child care providers
and programs with a strength-based approach throughout the state of New
Hampshire and will place an emphasis on targeted TA.

2.15. The Contractor wilt provide technical assistance specialists that meet the specific
qualifications described in the New Hampshire Earty Childhood Professional
Development System for Mentor, Program Consultant or Allied Professional at the
Master Professional level. The Technical Assistance Specialists' activities will
include but not be limited to:

\'

Soolhem New HjmpsWre ServiMi, Inc. ExfWttl A Contractof lnIU»ti
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2.15.1. Assisting with credentialing through the NH Earty Childhood Professional
Development System and the NH Professional Registry.

2.15.2. Providing training and technical assistance in business management
practices for child care programs.

2.15.3. Providing technical assistance to child care programs to support them to
implement the Strengthening Families approach.

2.15.4. Assisting child care programs with completing a written EmergerKy
preparedness plan based on the Incident Command System.

2.15.5. Assisting child care programs to create individual professional development
plans designed to increase teacher competency.

2.15.6. Training child care program staff how to implement the NH Early Learning
Standards.

2.15.7. Assisting child care providers to participate in NH QRIS.

2.15.8. Assisting child care program staff to create and update annual worl(force

records in the New Hampshire Professional Registry.

2.15.9. Availability to answer questions via telephone, email, at onslte visits. In-
person at one of the regional outreach offices and/or at SNHS CCR&R

sponsored trainings and events.

3. Cultural CoftakSeratlona

3.1. The Contractor will provide culturally responsive services to families and child care
providers from diverse language and cultural backgrounds.

3.1.1. CCR&R staff will receive training in cultural competency.

3.1.2. Translation and Interpretation services will be provided through several

venues.

3.1.2.1. Staff may translate written materials or speak with families,

3.1.2.2. Interpretation services will be available through the Language Line.

3.1.2.3. The video remote option will provide access to American Sign

Language through computers to ensure the accuracy of visual cues.

3.1.2.4. Written materials will be made available in languages other than
English.

3.1.3. The Contractor will examine and build on current knowledge to solidify

understanding of the cultural variations across the state and individualize

services when necessary to meet the needs of each area.

4. Staffing

Southern New HempsWre Services. Irw. ExhiUt A Conlreclor Initlats.
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4.1. The Contractor will employ fourteen full time employees to manage and Implement

the required scope of services listed above. All training and TA Team staff will meet

the qualiftcations of the NH Early Childhood Professional Development System on
the Master Professional level and an emphasis will be placed on obtaining aiid/or
being qualified for an Infant/Toddler Endorsement. Staff members shall include:

4.1.1. Program Manager (located in the Southern/Manchester/Main Office);

4.1 .T.I. Must have a minimum of a Master's Degree In Early Childhood

Education or a minimum of a Master's degree including a mintmum of
twenty-four (24) credits in approved coursework (all credit

requirements must include a minim of 3 credits focused on child

growth & development); .

4.1.1.2. Five (5) years, experience in early childhood education;

4.1.1.3. Planning and implementation of at least 24 hours of group training of
adults over a 2 year period, or successful completion of the Trainer
Development Program (TDP) and an additional 12 hours of training

post TDP; and

4.1.1.4. Experience in supervision and leadership.

4.1.2. Lead Outreach Specialist (located in the Southem/Manchester/Main Office);

4.1.2.1. Must have a minimum of an Associate's Degree in Early Childhood
Education or a post-graduate degree with a minimum of twenty-four
(24) credit in Early Childhood Education;

4.1.2.2. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.2.3. Excellent customer service skills;

4.1.2.4. Proficient computer skills In relation to data entry, word processirtg
and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.2.6. five ycoro, experience weiking with cJ'iildrti'i and faiiiilm in a
community-based setting.

4.1.3. Four (4) Outreach Spedalists (1- Southern/Manchester/Main.1-
ConcordfLaconta. 1-Claremont/Kee«^e. 1-Rochester/Seacoast);

4.1.3 .1. Must have a minimum of an Associate's Degree In Early Childhood
Education or a post-graduate degree with a minimum of twenty-four
(24) credit in Early Childhood Education or approved coursework;

4.1.3.2. Proficient computer skills in relation to data entry, word processir^g
and spreadsheet management;

4.1.3.3. Five years, experience working with children ar^ families in a
community-based setting; and

4.1.3.4. Has the documentation required Section 4.2.

Soiffr>emN«w Hampshire Sefvices. Inc. ExhibiiA Contractor Irtilials

Page MoT 16 OateMa



Hww Hampvhifv Department of HeaKh and Human Servlcet
CMid Care Reaource and Referral Servlcea

ExMMtA

4.1.4. Professional Development Support Coordinator (located in the
Berlin/Conway/Littleton Office):

4.1.4.1. Must have a minimum of a Baccalaureate Degree in Earty Childhood
Education or a post-graduate degree with a minimum of 24 credits in
ECE or approved courseworlc;

4.1.4.2. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.4.3. Excellent customer service skills;

4.1.4.4. High degree of professionalism;

4.1.4.5. Proficient computer skills in relation to data entry, word processing
and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.4.6. Five years, experience wotlring with children and families in a

community-based setting at least two of which are In a program

director supervisory or leadership role.

4.1.5. Training and Marketing Specialist (locate in the Claremont/Keene OfTice);

4.1.5.1. Must have a minimum of an Associates'Degree in Marketing,
Computer Science. Graphic Design or related field,

4.1.5.2. Proven experience in CCR&R services In relation to marketing and

outreach activities can be substituted for field of study;

4.1.5.3. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.5.4. Excellent customer service and marketing skills;

4.1.5.5. Proficient computer experience in relation to data entry, word
processing, web design and database managernent and reporting;

4.1.5.6. Kr»owledge of the Earty Childhood field; and

4.1.5.7. Five years' experience working In a community based settlr>g Is
preferred.

4.1.6. Bilingual Support Specialist (located in the Southern/Manchester/Main

Office);

4.1.6.1. Must be Bilingual;

4.1.6.2. Must have a minimum of an Associate's Degree In Earty Childhood

Education. Social Work or a post-graduate degree with a minimum of
24 credits in ECE or approved coursework;

4.1.6.3. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.6.4. Excellent customer service skills;

. 4.1.6.5. Proficient computer skills in relation to data entry, word processing,
and spreadsheet management; and

Southern New Hampstwe Servicesi Inc. ExhiMA Contrector Iniliats
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4.1.6.6. Five years' experience working with children and families in a

community based setting.

4.1.7. Four (4) Training and Technical Assistance Specialists (2
Scuthem/Manchester/Main Office. 1 Rochester/Seacoast. 1
Berlin/Conway/Ltttleton) for the provision of TA to child care programs
Included In but not limited to the above mentioned regions;

4.1.7.1. Mush have a minimum of a Baccalaureate D^ree in Earty Childhood
Education or a post-graduate degree with a minimum of 24 credits in
ECE or approved coursework;

4.1.7.2. Strong written and verbal communication skills;

4.1.7.3. Excellent customer service skills and a high degree of
professionalism;

4.1.7.4. Proficient computer skills in relation to data entry, word processing,
and spreadsheet management; and

4.1.7.5. Five years' experience working in an early childhood setting, at least
two of which are in a program director supervisory or leadership role.

4.1.8. infant and Toddler Specialist (located in the Concord/Laconia Office);

4.1.8.1. Must have a minimum of a Baccalaureate Degree in Early Childhood
Education or a post-graduate degree with a minimum of 24 credits in

ECE or approved coursework of which at least 9 credits are focused

on Infant/Toddler content;

4.1.8.2. Strong written and vertjal communication skills;

4.1.8.3. Excellent customer service skills and a high degree of
professionalism;

4.1.8.4. Proficient computer skills In relation to data entry, word processing.

and eprcodohcot fwonogement! end —^

4.1.8.5. Five years' experience working in an earty childhood setting, at least

three of which must be training and/or leaching to adults on l/T
content or consulting in Iff programs.

4.2. The Contractor will ensure that all staff, subcontractors, and volunteers wortdng on

this contract, have documentation of a criminal background and central registry
check that demonstrates no criminal offences.

6, Peffprmance Measuret

5.1. The Contractor will adhere to all the performance measures in the attached Exhibit

"A-1 - Performance Measures and Goals.'

Soolhem New Hampshire Services. Inc. Exhibil A Contractor Indials C>^
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Section
Performance Measure SFY

2016

Goal

SFY

2017

Goal
3.2.2 The number of families receiving Financial AsslstaiKe to Needy

Families (FANF) for whom child care referrals were provided.
1500 1500

3.2.2 The number of families not receiving FANF for whom child care
referrals were provided.

1000 1000

3.2.2 The percentage of families receiving FANF for v^om child care
referrals were provided who were successful In having child care
needs met.

70% 70%

3.2.2 The percentage of families not receiving FANF for whom child
care referrals were provided who were successful In having child
care needs met.

70% 70%

3.3.1 The number of families whose first language is not English for
whom referrals were provided.

50 50

3.2.3 The number of initiatives in which CCRSiR collaborates with

stakeholders.

20 20

3.2.4.5 The number of updates to the NACCRRA Data Suite (NOS)
database, including deleting duplicate and/or unnecessary data.

6 6

3.2.6 The total number of training opportunities offered to child care
program staff directly by CCR&R.

225 225

3.2.6 The number of Child Care Basics training opportunities offered
through the New Hampshire Professional Registry (Training

Registry module in the NACCRRA Data Suite (NDS) for child care
program staff.

45 45

3.2.6 The number of child care program staff who complete Child Care

Basics training.
1000 1000

3.2.8 The numter of health and safety training opportunities offered
for child care program staff directly by CCr8(R, and posted in the
New Hampshire Professional Registry.

60 60

3.2.8 The number of child care program staff who complete health and
safety training provided directly by CCRSiR.

1500 1500

3.2.8 The number of other health and safety training opportunities
made accessible through referrals to the Spark NH PORTAL and
the NH Professional Registry (Training Registry module in the
NACCRRA Data Suite).

20 20

3.2.6 The number of child care providers for whom targeted technical
assistance was provided to change/expand their programs in
order to meet unmet child care needs.

25 25

3.2.9.1 The number of early childhood professionals for whom technical

assistance was provided who are awarded one or more

70

\

70

Child Care Resource and Referral Services
South^ New Hampshire Services, inc.
Exhibit A-1 - Perfbimance Measures and Goals
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credentials through the NH Early Qilldhood Professional
Development System.

3.2.9.2 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance
was provided to improve their business management practices.

50 50

3.2.9.3 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance

was provided who Implement the Strengthening Families
approach.

12 12

3.2.9.4 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance
was provided who complete a written Emergency Preparedness
plan based on the Incident Command System.

15 IS

3.2.9.5 The number of child care program staff for whom technical
assistance was provided who complete an individual professional
development plan designed to increase competency.

100 100

3.2.9.6 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistance
was provided to Implement the New Hampshire Early Learning
Standards.

15 15

3.2.9.7 The number of child care programs for whom technical assistarKe
was provided who participate In the NH Quality Rating

Improvement System (QRIS).

25 25

3.2.9.8 The number of child care program staff for whom technical
assistance was provided to create and/or update workforce
records annually in the New Hampshire Professional Registry.

250 250

3.3.1 The number of child care providers whose first language is not
English for whom technical assistance was provided.

20 20

Child Care Resource and Referral Services
Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Exhibit A-1 - Performance Measures and Goals
Page 2 of 2
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ExhIbK B

• iL-iill'i* and Conditions Precedent to Payment

I .

1. Subject to the availability of Federal funds, and In consideration for the Contractor's compliance
kvith the terms and corfoclions of this agreement, and for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services, and expenses Incurred, the Department shall pay the
Contractor an amount not to exceed. Form P-37. block 1.8. Price Limitation.

1.1. This contract is funded with fonds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) # 93.575, Federal Agency Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Famities, Child Care and Development Block Grant, for
the provision of services pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Senrlces.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Eidiibit A, Scope of Services in
compliance with the funding requirements.

2. Payment for said services shall be made monthly, but not less than quarterly:

2.1 Payment shaD be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fuinilment of this agreement. The invoice, provided by the Department, must be
completed, signed, and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment. In lieu of
hard copies, invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed. Hard copies
shall be mailed to;

Fiscal Administrator
NH Departmerrt of Health and Human Services
Division for Children. Youth and FamiQes

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2 Expenditures shaD be in accordance with the approved line item budget shown in Exhibit
B-1.

3. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in
Exhibit A.

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract ends.
Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that fonding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law. rule or regulaticn applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordar>ce with the terms and conditions of tNs Agreement.

6. When the contract price Umitation is reached, the progranf> shall continue to operate at fUl
capacity at no charge to the State of New Hampshire tor the duration of the contract period.

EtfvibiiB Contiactof Ir^ls ̂
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SPECIAL PaOVMIQttt

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants arxj agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to diglble
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants ar>d
agrees as folloM<s:

f

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such cliglblDty determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Marwierof Dotennlnatlon: ERgWIIty determlnaUons shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall t>e made and remade at such limes as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. DocumentaUon: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, ̂ ich file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determlnatton and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish ihe Department with all fonms and docurnentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that an applicants for services hereunder, as well as
ind'tviduals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determinab'on. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to Fill out
an application form ar>d that each applicant or re-ai^licanl shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuttios or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment gratutty or offer of employment on be^lf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the ̂ te in order to Influence the perfbrrnance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any offidals, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut>-ContractQr.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other documenL contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs trKurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall t>e made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual Is eDgible for such services.

7. Conditiorts of Purchase: NotM^standlr>g anything to the contrary contained in the Contract nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
furxlers lor such service. H at any time durir^ the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to;
7.1. Rervegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In v^lch event new rates shall t>e established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimtKirsem^l in

excess of costs;

Exnf&it C - special Provisions Coniraixor initials.
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligbility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time dun'ng the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foOowirig records during the Contract Period:
8.1.. Fiscal Records: tx)oks. records, documents and other data evidencing and renect)r>g all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accountir>g procedures and practices which sufflclently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department arto
to include, without limitation, all ledgers. t>ook$, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kirto contributions, tabor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract PerkxJ. which records shall include all records of application arto
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/redpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the I3epartment within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommerxled that the report be prepared in accordant with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities arvj Functions, issued t)y the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports arxf records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit examination, excerpts arxl transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held Eable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Conflder^ality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereurvler or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall r>ot
t>e disclosed by tfie Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulatio^^s of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
pubDc officials requiring such cnformation.ln connection with their official duties airto for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: iand pmyl^d^further, th^
(he use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any pw^se not
directly connected whh the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipienL his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwitnstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the terminatiori of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statisticai: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Fmandal Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detaiied description of

aD costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the rep^ ar>d
containir>g such other information as shal be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report sl^il be submitted within tttirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals arxJ objectives staled In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of tNs Contract and/or
survive the tennination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Fnai Expenditure Report the Department shall dtsallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
e}q>enses as are.disallowed or to recover sud^ sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the following
statement

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding souoes as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health arxl Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased undier the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials product under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilltlea: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
for provkSng services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and munidpat authorities and with any direction of any Put}Gc Officer or officers
pursuar^t to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the fadlity or the provision of the services at such facDHy. If any governmental Bcensc or
permit shall be requlr^ for the operation of the said fadlity or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
cortditions of each such license or permit, in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenarits arxi agrees that during the term of this Contract the fadlities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local buildif>g and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), Ifjt has
received a single award of $500,000 or rhore. If the redplent receives $25,000 or more an<rha$ 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certificabon Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifyir>g it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-r
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical arto educaUorxal institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submK a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoyabout/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons wHh Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, i>atk>nal origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 and Title VI of the CMI
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the SimpBfied Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee VlA^isuEeLOWER Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worlung on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rl^its
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

- (b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistiebiowef rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712,-as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in ad
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shal retain the responsibility and accountablUty for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate^the subcontractor's abDity to perform the delegated
furKtion(5). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of (he subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
•conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
IMwn the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontraaor. the Contractor shall do the foOowing:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's abOity to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement viAh the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsbHities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Einibit c - special provisions ContraclOf Initials

osnr/u Page * ol 5 Date



Nmt Hamp»hlr* D«partm«f)t of HmWi and Human Sarvlcaa
ExMbftC

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subconlractofs, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed .

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review 3r>d approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall '
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
aflowat)le and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEA^ENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled 'Finandal Management Gukfelines' and which contains thie regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to t)e provided to eligible
.individuals by the Contractor. In accordance with the terms ar>d conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service toat the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhitrit B of the
Contract. '

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and ptkides, etc. are
referred to In the Contract the said reference shali1>e deemed to mean all such laws, regulatiorrs, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
. Services containing a compilation of alt regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
^ministratfve Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541»A. for the purpose of implementinQ State of NH arvf
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guararrtees that funds provided under this
Contract wid not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Erhibit C - Special ProvisiORS Contractor InKtaU .
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1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including wrthout limitation, the continuar>ce of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or avaiiabilrty of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Sen/Ices provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of af^ropriated or avaBable fur>ds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shaO have the right to. reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in bl^ 1.6 of the General Provisiorw, Account Number, or any other
accourtt, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the Ger>eral Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amer>ded by adding
the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole diSCTetlon of
.  the State, 30 days after givlr>g the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising.its

option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termlr^ation, develop ar>d submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under (he
Agreement, including t>ut not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of cfients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termiriatlon of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing commurvcatlon ar>d revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services uiider the Agreement, includirrg but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transttioned to havmg services delivered by another,entity
including contracted providers or tt>e State, the Contractor shall provide a process for .
uninterrupted delivery of services in the TrarrsHlon Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of rwtifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph Is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive ger>eral liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence wHh additional general liability umbrella coverage of not less than
$5,000,000; and

4. The Division resenres the right to renew the Contract for up to three (3) additional periods ol two
(2) years each, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services
and approval by the Governor and Executive CouncH. \
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